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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty fourth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Bhagiradha Chemicals & 
Industries Limited will be held on Tuesday the 26th day of September, 2017 at 11.00 am at Hotel Green Park, Green 
lands, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 016 to transact the following business:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017 including 
Audited Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date 
and the reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon.

2.	 To appoint Director in place of Smt S.Lalitha Sree (DIN: 06957985), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-appointment.

3.	 To appoint  M/s. S. Singhvi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad (FRN. 003872S) as  statutory auditors of the 
company to hold office for a period of five years viz. from the conclusion of this 24th Annual General Meeting(AGM) 
to until the conclusion of its 29th Annual General Meeting of the company  subject to approval of their members in 
ensuing AGM and subsequent AGMs of the Company till the expiry of their term and authorize the Board to fix their 
remuneration for respective period(s).

Special Business:

4.	 Ratification of Cost Auditors Remuneration for FY : 2017-18

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. 

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 the remuneration of the Cost Auditor, M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants,    
for the financial year ending 31st March, 2018 be and is hereby determined as recommended by the Audit committee 
and approved by the Board of Directors.” 

5.	 Adoption of MOA as per Compnies Act, 2013.

	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 13 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with the 
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being in force), and such other rules and regulations, as may be 
applicable, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for alteration of Memorandum of Association 
of the Company by deleting Clause III (C )–OTHER OBJECTS and accordingly Memorandum of Association will no 
longer carry Other Objects.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving full effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, 
deem necessary, expedient, proper or desirable and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in 
this regard at any stage without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the Members of 
the Company to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the 
authority of this resolution.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. S. Chandra Sekhar, Managing Director and Mrs. B.N. Suvarchala, Company 
Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give 
effect to the above resolution.”

6.	 To Approve the increase in borrowing limits and converion of the same into equity capital.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable  provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications or any amendments or any substitution or re-enactment 
thereof, if any, for the time being in force and all other applicable Acts, laws, rules, regulations and guidelines for the 
time being in force; the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for 
borrowing from time to time as they may think fit, any sum or sums of money not exceeding Rs. 120 crores [including 
the money already borrowed by the Company] from the Banks/ Financial Institutions /Promoters/ Promoter Group/
Directors on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit, whether the same may be secured or unsecured 
and if secured, whether by way of mortgage, charge or hypothecation, pledge or otherwise in any way whatsoever, 
notwithstanding that the money to be borrowed together with the money already borrowed by the Company (apart 
from the temporary loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business) and remaining 
un-discharged at any given time, exceed the aggregate, for the time being, of the paid-up capital of the Company and 
its free reserves.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules made there under, and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association 
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of the Company and applicable regulations and subject to all such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s), sanction(s), if 
any, of appropriate authorities and departments in this regard and subject to such condition(s) and modification(s) as 
may be prescribed or imposed, while granting such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) or sanction(s), the consent 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, to convert any loan(s) which 
will raise in future into equity Share capital of the Company at the option of the Lender(s) on the terms and conditions 
contained in the financing documents or as may be specified by the Financial Institutions/Banks/Promoters/ Promoter 
Group/Directors.”  

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above Resolution, the Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorised to take all such actions and to give all such directions and to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and/or expedient in that behalf.”

By order of the Board

Date: 29.08.2017	 B. N. Suvarchala
Place: Hyderabad	 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.	 An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Special Business to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

2.	 A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. The 
Proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy form, in order to be effective must be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

3.	 The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 18th September, 2017 to 26th 
September, 2017 (both days inclusive). The book closure dates have been fixed in consultation with the Stock 
Exchange.

4.	 Members are requested to utilize the Electronic Clearing System (ECS) for receiving dividend and may accordingly 
advise their Depository Participants in case the shares are held in electronic form and the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent in case of shares in physical form.

5.	 Non-resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform the Registrars, M/s. XL Softech Systems Limited immediately:

	 •	 The change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

	 •	 The particulars of the Bank Account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account

		  number and address of the Bank, if not furnished earlier.

6.	 Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly certified copy of 
the Board resolution authorizing their representatives to attend.

7.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to 
submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Company / Registrar.

8.	 In terms of Circular No.17/2011, dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No.18/2011, dated 29.04.2011 issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, under Green initiative in the Corporate Governance all the members are requested to intimate 
their e-mail address to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents whose e-mail is xlfield@gmail.com mentioning 
the Company’s name i.e., Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited (BCIL), so as to enable the company to send 
the Annual Report and Accounts, Notices and other documents through Electronic Mode to their e-mail address.

	 •	 in respect of electronic shareholding - through their respective Depository Participants.

	 •	 in respect of physical shareholding - by sending a request to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent at xlfield@
gmail.com, mentioning therein the Company’s name i.e., Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited (BCIL), 
their folio number and e-mail address.

9.	 The Annual Report 2016-17 as circulated to the members of the Company is also available on the website of the 
Company www.bhagirad.com

10.	 Voting for transaction of Business:

	 The business as set out in the Notice may be transacted and that:

	 (A)	 The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means in compliance with the provisions of Section 
108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the 
44(1) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.
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	 (B)	 The Facility for voting, either through electronic voting system or ballot or polling Paper shall also be made 
available at the meeting and members attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote may exercise 
their vote through ballot paper. 

	 (C)	 The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting shall not be entitled cast their vote again.

	 The procedure and instructions for members for voting electronically are as under.

	 The voting period begins at 10.00 A.M. on 22nd September, 2017 and ends at 5 P.M. on 25th September, 2017. 
During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date (record date) of 19th September, 2017, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

	 i)	 Open your web browser during the voting period and log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

	 ii)	 Click on “Shareholders” to cast your votes.

	 iii)	 User ID:                   

	 For Members holding shares in Demat Form:-

	 a)	 For CDSL:– 16 digits beneficiary ID

	 b)	 For NSDL:– 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client ID

	 For Members holding shares in Physical Form:-

	 a)	 Folio Number registered with the Company

	 iv)	 Enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

	 v)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

	 vi)	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

PAN •	 Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by   Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat as well as physical shareholders)

•	 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence 
number in the PAN field.

•	 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s 
before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If 
your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the 
PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the 
said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend
Bank
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 
for the said demat account or folio. Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order 
to login. If the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

	 vii)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on ''SUBMIT” tab.

	 viii)	 Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company Selection  screen. However, 
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

	 ix)	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

	 x)	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

	 xi)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” 
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

	 xii)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
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	 xiii)	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A Confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

	 xiv)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

	 xv)	 You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 
page.

	 xvi)	 If  Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

	 xvii)	 Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

		  •	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to 
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.

		  •	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk. evoting@cdslindia.com.

		  •	 After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

		  •	 The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

		  •	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour 
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

	 xviii)	 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) 
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com.

11.	 The Company has appointed Mr. Naresh Tiwari, Practicing Company Secretary, who in the opinion of the Board is a 
duly qualified person, as a Scrutinizer who will collate the electronic voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
The Scrutinizer shall within a period of three working days from the date of conclusion of the shareholders meeting, 
submit his report after consolidation of e-voting and the votes in the shareholders meeting, cast in favour of or against, 
if any, to the Chairman of the Company. Results will be uploaded on the Company’s website as well as intimated to 
the Stock Exchange (BSE).

12.	 Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the brief 
profile of Director eligible for re-appointment vide item no. 2 is as follows:

Particulars Smt S. Lalitha Sree
Din 06957985

Date of Birth 03-01-1978
Date of Appointment 11-08-2014
Qualifications Post Graduate

Experience in specific functional areas Nil
Directorship held in other listed entities Nil

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of listed enti-
ties (includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee

Nil

Number of shares held in the company 60,000
Relationship with any Director(s) of the Company Wife of Sri. S. Chandra Sekhar, Managing Director

By order of the Board
For Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited

Place: Hyderabad	 B.N. Suvarchala
Date: 29.08.2017	 Company Secretary
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Explanatory statement

ITEM NO: 4 Ratification of Cost Auditors Remuneration for FY : 2017-18

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Audit committee, at their meeting held on 29th August, 2017 has 
approved the appointment and remuneration of the M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants in practice, as Cost Auditors 
of the company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2018 on 
a remuneration of Rs. 75000/- (Rupees Seventy five Thousand Only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for 
ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2018.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way interested, financially 
or otherwise, in this resolution.

ITEM NO : 5  Adoption of MOA as per Compnies Act, 2013.

As per the provisions of section 4 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company will no longer carry other objects Clause. However, the existing Memorandum 
of Association of the Company carries other objects Clause.

In order to comply with section 4 of the Act, it is proposed to alter Memorandum of Association of the Company by deleting 
Clause III(C)  – OTHER OBJECTS and accordingly Memorandum of Association will no longer carry other objects.

A copy of the proposed set of new Memorandum of Association of the Company would be available for inspection for the  
members at the Registered Office of the Company during the office hours on any working day between11.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of Company and their relatives are concerned or interested in the said 
resolution.

ITEM NO: 6  To Approve the increase in borrowing limits and converion of the same into equity capital.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 29.08.2017 authorized the Board to borrow monies in 
excess of the paid capital and free reserves up to an amount not exceeding Rs.120 crores.

It is proposed to take the approval of the members of the Company to borrow monies in the form of either secured or 
unsecured loans with the option to convert the said loans into equity share capital of the Company with the consent of the 
Lenders collectively or independently.

As per the provisions of Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
there under, acceptance of secured/ unsecured loans and convert into Equity Share Capital at a later date requires the 
approval of the shareholders of the Company by means of Special Resolution duly passed in the General Meeting of the 
Company. Your directors feel that this proposal is at the best interest of the company.

None of the Directors of the Company/KMPs or relatives of Directors are interested in this resolution.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Statement Annexed thereto would be available for inspection 
without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during 10:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M on any working 
day (excluding Sunday) up to the date of the meeting.

Notice for shareholders/investors for unpaid dividends

i)	 Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend remaining 
unclaimed for a period of seven years is to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund. Information in 
respect of such unclaimed dividend when due for transfer to the said Fund is given below:

Financial Year Date of Declaration of 
Dividend

Amount as on
31.03.2017 (in `)

Due Date for transfer
to IEPF 

2013-14 11-08-2014 81,886 09-08-2021
2014-15 08-08-2015 150,726 06-08-2022

ii)	 Members who have not encashed the dividend warrants so far in respect of the aforesaid periods are requested to 
send their claims, if any, to the company well in advance of the above due dates. Once the amounts in the unpaid 
dividend is transferred to the IEPF, no claim shall lie against IEPF or the company in respect thereof and the Members 
will lose their right to claim such dividend.

iii)	 During the year dividend amounting to Rs. 120,990/- that have not been claimed by the shareholders for the Financial 
year 2008-09  was transferred to the credit of Investor Education and Protection Fund as required under section 124 
read with section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fourth Annual Report of your Company together with the audited 
statement of accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

Financial performance:	 ` in lakhs

Particulars
 Year ended
31.03.2017

Year ended
31.03.2016

Net Sales 20309.58 15026.94
Other income 182.77 103.92
Operating profit (PBDIT) 1268.15 495.26
Depreciation (383.60) (363.38)
Interest (619.50) (660.61)
Profit before tax 265.05 (528.73)
Provision for tax (incl. deferred tax) (61.91) 207.89
Profit after tax 203.14 (320.84)
Earning per share (EPS) 4.02 (6.35)

Performance review:

The Board of Directors are pleased to inform that the company has achieved a turnover of Rs.22105 Lakhs(Rs.16415 Lakhs).
The net revenue from operations  for the current year Rs.20310 Lakhs (Rs.15027 Lakhs). The profit before tax for the current 
year is Rs. 265 Lakhs as against the loss of Rs.529 Lakhs during the previous year.

Dividend:

Your Directors have not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2016-17.

During the year dividend amounting to Rs. 120,990/- that have not been claimed by the shareholders for the Financial year 
2008-09 was transferred to the credit of Investor Education and Protection Fund as required under section 124 read with 
section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board Meetings: 

The Board of Directors duly met 4 times during the financial year from 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017.  The meetings 
were held on 25th May 2016, 12th August, 2016, 12th November, 2016 and 13th February, 2017.

Directors:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. S. Lalitha Sree (DIN: 06957985) retires from office 
by rotation, and being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The information on the particulars of Director eligible for appointment in terms of Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 has been provided in the notes to the notice convening the Annual General 
Meeting.

Independent Directors Declaration:

The Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Director 
in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that 
the Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them eligible to act as 
Independent Directors.

Evaluation of the Board’s Performance:

 In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015, the performance evaluation of the Board was carried out during the year under review. More details on 
the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm as under:

I.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed and there are no material departures from the same.
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II.	 The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the end of 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2017 and the profit of the Company for the year under review.

III.	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

IV.	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis.

V.	 The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and operating effectively.

VI.	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Management Discussion and Analysis:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report as Annexure-II.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s. R. Kankaria & Uttam Singhi. Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company hold office up to the conclusion 
of 24th Annual General Meeting, who were appointed in the 21st AGM to hold office until the conclusion of 24th AGM. Your 
company seeks  appointment of M/s. S. Singhvi &Co., Chartered accountants (Firm Reg.No. 003872S) as Statutory Auditors 
of the company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Statutory Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Cost Auditors:

The Board of Directors has on the recommendation of Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s. Sagar & Associates, 
Cost Accountants, Hyderabad as Cost Auditors of the company for the year 2017-2018 at a remuneration of Rs.75,000. 
The proposed remuneration of the Cost Auditors would be approved by the members in the ensuing AGM. The Cost Audit 
Report for the year 2015-16 has been filed under XBRL mode within the due date.

The Cost Audit Report for the F.Y 2015-16 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Auditors:

The Board of Directors has on the recommendation of Audit Committee, approved the appointment of  M/s. Naresh Tiwari 
& Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor for the year 2017-2018.The secretarial audit report for the 
F.Y 2016-17 forms part of this Report as Annexure -III. 

There are no qualifications or observations or remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in their Report.

Audit Committee:

The committee comprises of Shri D. Ranga Raju, Shri Sudhakar Kudva and Shri S. Chandra Sekhar.  The Chairman of the 
Committee is Shri Sudhakar Kudva who is a non-executive Independent Director. The Company Secretary is the Secretary 
to the committee. During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the audit committee were held.

Vigil mechanism:

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and 
employees to report genuine concerns has been established.  The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at www.bhagirad.com/reports/vigil mechanism/ vigil mechanism policy link.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of Shri.D. Ranga Raju as Chairman and Shri Sudhakar Kudva and Shri D. 
Sadasivudu as members. The details of term of reference of the Committee member, dates of meeting held and attendance 
of the Directors are given separately in the Corporate Governance Report.

Internal Financial Controls:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, such 
controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.
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Conservation of energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo:

The particulars as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given to the extent applicable in the Annexure forming part of this Report is enclosed as 
Annexure -I.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

During the year pursuant to the provisions of section 135 read with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 the company 
does not fall under the criteria of CSR Policy. Hence the company has not contributed towards CSR Activity.

Material changes effecting financial positions of the company:

A fire accident occurred on early hours of 20th May, 2017 in Production Block-3, resulting in loss of stock-in-process and 
damage to the building and machinery. The company has filed for claim with National Insurance Company which is under 
process. Restoration works are in progress in the block and is expected to be fully functional by October-2017. The loss of 
production is expected to impact the top and bottom line of the company performance during the financial year 2017-18. 

Extract of Annual Return:

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT - 9 forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure-V.

Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associate Companies:

During the year under review the company does not have any subsidiaries,  joint ventures and associated companies.

Fixed Deposits:

Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding, as on 
the date of the Balance Sheet.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

The Company has not granted any Loans, Investments, Guarantees and securities.

Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace: 

The company has a policy on prohibition, prevention and redressal of Sexual Harassment of women at workplace and 
matters connected there with or incidental there to cover all the aspects as contained under “The Sexual Harassment of 
women at workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013”.

During the financial year 2016-17, no complaint was received under the policy.

Particulars of Employees:

During the year none of the employees have received remuneration more than the limits specified under the  Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013  read with Rules 5(2) and 35(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Remuneration ratio of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel (kmp) / employees:

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, in respect of employees of the 
company and Directors is furnished here under:

SI.
No

Name Designation Remuneration 
paid 

F.Y 2016-17
` lakhs  

Remuneration 
paid 

F.Y 2015-16
` lakhs  

Increase in 
Remuneration 
from previous 
Year ` lakhs  

Ratio/Times
per Median
of employee
remuneration

1. S.Chandra Sekhar MD 38.59 38.59 - 32.15
2. B. Murali CFO(KMP) 30.90 30.90 - 25.75
3. A.Arvind kumar COO(KMP) 25.72 25.72 - 21.40
4. B.N.Suvarchala CS(KMP) 3.96 3.96 - 3.30
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Listing with Stock Exchange: 

The Board of Directors confirm that, the annual listing fee have been paid for the year 2017-2018 to BSE where the 
Company’s Shares are listed.

Dematerialization of shares:

99.01% of the company’s paid up Equity Share Capital is in dematerialized form as on 31st March, 2017 and balance 
0.99% is in physical form. 

Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information:

Your Company has taken adequate steps to adhere to all the stipulations laid down in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

A report on Corporate Governance is included as a part of this Annual Report. Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of 
the company confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 is attached to this report as Annexure-VI.

Risk and area of concern:

The company has laid down a well defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk 
exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, manage 
and monitor and non-business risks. The Audit Committee and the Board periodically review the risks and suggest steps to 
be taken to manage/ mitigate the same through a properly defined framework.

During the year, a risk analysis and assessment was conducted and no major risks were noticed, which may threaten the 
existence of the company.

Related Party Transactions:

All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, which are not material in 
nature. All related party transactions are with the approval of the Audit Committee and periodically placed before the Board 
for review. The Particulars of transactions during the year as AOC-2 is enclosed in Annexure-IV.

Research & Development:

R&D continues to do good job in process development. Over the years, it has adopted to changing and difficult times, 
and has been contributing with the current needs of the Company by maximum utilization of its existing resources. It has 
endeavored to generate revenues by way of development of new products and various developments in processes. 

Safety, Health, Environment and Quality:

The Company is committed to excellence in safety, health, environment and quality management. It accords the highest priority 
to the health and safety of its employees, customers and other stakeholders as well as to the protection of the environment. 
The management of your Company is focused on continuous improvement in these areas which are fundamental to the 
sustainable growth of the Company.

Acknowledgement:

The Directors take this opportunity to thank all the stakeholders for their support and co-operation.

For and on behalf of the Board

Date: 29.08.2017	 D. Ranga Raju
Place: Hyderabad.		  Chairman
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Annexures to the Directors Report

ANNEXURE- I

Information required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 2014.

A)	 Conservation of Energy

	 The products manufactured by the company are material intensive. However, consistent efforts are being made for 
identifying the potential for energy saving. 

	 The requisite information with regard to conservation of energy as required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules made therein in Form A are given hereunder:

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2017

For the year ended 
31.03.2016

I.	 Energy Conservation Power & Fuel Consumption    

1.	 Electricity    

	 (i)	 purchased  units (kwh) 18,097,636 16,970,054

		  Total amount  (`) (including demand charges) 119,210,664 108,461,887

		  Unit Rate (`) 6.59 6.39

	 (ii)	 Own generation (on diesel)

		  a)	 Diesel consumption (Ltrs) 40,200 41,006

			   No of units 120,600 123,018

			   Units/ Liter of Diesel 3.00 3.00

			   Total amount (`) 2,461,228 2,244,607

			   unit cost  (`) 20.41 18.25

		  b)	 Steam Turbine Generation

			   No of units Nil Nil

			   Units/ton of Steam Nil Nil

			   Cost/Unit (`) Nil Nil

2.	 'C’ Grade coal used in Boiler

		  Quantity (MT) 16,101 15,575

		  Total Cost (`) 90,377,604 73,672,009

		  Average Rate/MT 5,613 4,730

3.	 Furnace oil

		  Quantity ( Ltrs) 75,330 121,080

		  Total cost  (`) 1,750,127 2,688,229

		  Average Rate/Ltr 23.23 22.20

4.	 Others /Internal Generation

		  Quantity (MT) Nil Nil

		  Total cost  (`) Nil Nil

		  Average Rate/MT Nil Nil

II	 Consumption Per Unit Of Production

	 Electricity purchased & own Generation (units) 6,812 6,976

	 Furnace Oil (Ltr) 28.17 49.41

	 Coal Quality ‘C’ Grade (MT) 6.02 6.36
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FORM – B
(See Rule - 2)

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to technology absorption

B)	 Research and Development 

	 The Company lays great emphasis on R&D and intellectual property development which forms the core of the business 
development strategy. All the process technologies implemented by the company have been developed in-house in 
the DSIR recognized R&D. The R&D has developed and mastered a library of reactions over a period of time which 
forms the crux for future developments. The swiftness in development and implementation of new technologies has 
brought and will continue to being good business for the company. 

1)	 Specific areas in which R&D is carried out by the company

	 -	 Optimization of existing process technologies

	 -	 Development of process technologies for generic pesticides and intermediates

	 -	 Scale up and optimization of process technologies

2)	 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:

	 During Financial Year 2016- 2017 the company has

	 -	 Continuous Optimization of the process of manufacture of Azoxystrobin to stay competitive in the market.

	 -	 Commercialized two new products namely Diafenthiuron and an intermediate under contract manufacturing.

	 -	 Completed laboratory development of process technology for products proposed for exports which are 
expected to be commercialized in FY 2017-18. 

3)	 Future plan of action

	 -	 The company has plans to launch two generic products every year for domestic / export market. The R&D 
team is actively working on development of process technologies.

4)	 Expenditure on R&D for the year 2016-2017

` in Lakhs

Capital -
Recurring 89.01
Total	 89.01
R&D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover 0.44

C)	 Technology, absorption, adaptation and innovation

	 1)	 Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

		  All process technologies are developed in-house at the R&D. The R&D is equipped with instruments and equip-
ments to generate products from gram scale to kilo scale. After completely studying the process in pilot plant, 
standard operating procedures are developed for implementation in the plant.

	 2)	 Benefit derived as a result of above efforts

		  -	 Improvement in the quality of products. 

		  -	 Reduction in cost of manufacture.

		  -	 Commercialization of new product.

	 3)	 In case of imported technology (imported during last 5 years), give details of technology imported, year of import, 
whether technology fully absorbed.

		  -	 No technology has been imported by the company

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

` in Lakhs

Earnings 11645.46
Outgo 6903.68
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ANNEXURE- II

Management Discussion and Analysis

a)	 Industry structure and developments

	 According to reports Global Agrochemical Market was estimated at USD 214.2 billion in 2015 and was expected to 
grow at CGAR of 3.2% to USD 250.5 billion by 2020. The Crop Protection Chemical Market was estimated at USD 
52 billion in 2015 and expected to grow at CGAR of 6.2% to USD 82 billion by 2020. 

	 There is high growth potential for the agrochemical market in the untapped, emerging markets of India and China. 
Currently, India’s consumption of pesticide stands at 0.6 kilograms per hectare, which is among the lowest compared 
with 5-7 kilograms per hectare in the UK and nearly 13 kilograms per hectare in China. With increasing awareness 
among farmers, further penetration will lead to a rise in the consumption pattern.

b)	 Opportunities and Threats

	 India imports close to USD 925 million, or about Rs 5,900 crore, worth of technical pesticides, intermediaries, and 
finished products a year, of which around 55% comes from China. Pesticides import from China has also been increasing 
at CAGR of 6% since 2007. Under the Make in India scheme, the Govt. of India is taking initiatives to support the 
domestic manufacturing companies by restricting the import of Agrochemical active ingredients and its formulations. 
Imports from China are expected to reduce by 80% due to the regulatory changes proposed to boost local production 
of pesticides. A large portion of imports will shift from formulated products to raw materials. BCIL is actively pursuing 
registration of many products for domestic market which would result in increase in product base and revenues in 
domestic market. 

	 Rising sale of spurious pesticides and spiked bio-pesticides pose a major threat to the industry. Going forward, the 
industry needs increased scope of regulations to include all types of pesticides including biopesticides and increased 
inspection to contain the growth of spurious products.

c)	 Financial performance vis-a-vis operational performance

	 The sales revenue of the company increased from Rs.150 crores to Rs.200 crores. The company has obtained registration 
for one of its key products Azoxystrobin into the US resulting in, increased market for the product. Azoxystrobin and 
Chlorpyriphos will be the key products for the company in FY: 2017-18 which is expected to contribute to more than 
50% of the company’s revenues.

d)	 Outlook

	 The domestic market is expected to do well on account of good monsoon. The domestic revenues are expected to 
increase in comparison to the export revenues. 

e)	 Risks and Concerns

	 Most of the Indian companies are dependent on supply of agrochemical intermediates from China. The availability and 
pricing of these intermediates have significant bearing on the profitability. By backward integration of the manufacturing 
process to the base chemicals, the dependency on specific intermediates can be greatly reduced. 

f)	 Internal Control System and their adequacy

	 The company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls which ensure that all the assets are safeguarded 
and that all transactions are authorized recorded and reported correctly. The company maintains adequate and 
effective control system and suitable monitoring procedures with regard to the purchase of raw materials, stores, plant 
& machinery, equipment and other assets as well as sale of goods. The finance and commercial functions have been 
structured to provide adequate support and controls for the business of the company.

g)	 Industrial Relations and Human Resource Development

	 The company has cordial and harmonious industrial relations. Opportunities for individual growth, creativity and 
dedicated participation is organizational development are being provided.

	 Cautionary Statement

	 Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable security 
laws or regulations. These statements are based on certain assumptions and expectation of future events. Actual results 
could however differ from those expressed or implied. Many important factors including global and domestic demand-
supply conditions, prices, raw materials costs and availability, change in government regulations, tax laws and other 
statutes, force majeure may affect the actual result which could be different from what the director’s envisage in terms 
of future performance and outlook.
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ANNEXURE- III

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31-03-2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

M/s. BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s. BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s. BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we, hereby report that, 
in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2017, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. 
BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March 
2017 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period)

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit Period) and

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period)

	 (i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

(vi)	 We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 
relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof the Company has complied with the following laws applicable 
specifically to the Company: 

	 1.	 Industrial Employment Standing Order Act, 1946.

	 2.	 Industrial Disputes Act, 1947.
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	 3.	 Payment of Wages Act, 1936

	 4.	 Minimum Wages Act, 1948

	 5.	 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965.

	 6.	 Factories Act, 1948.

	 7.	 Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

	 8.	 Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

	 9.	 Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

	 10.	 Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923.

	 11.	 Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948.

	 12.	 Employees’ Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

	 13.	 Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

	 14.	 Information Technology Act, 2000

	 15.	 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

	 16.	 The Standards of Weight & Measurement Act, 1985.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:-

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members views are captured and recorded, if any, as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has not transacted / entered into any business, having a major 
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For NARESH TIWARI AND ASSOCIATES

CS. NARESH TIWARI
Place	:	Hyderabad	 ACS No. 26932
Date	 :	29-08-2017	 C P No.: 12889
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ANNEXURE- V

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i CIN : L24219AP1993PLC015963

ii Registration Date : 07.07.1993
iii Name of the Company : BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED
iv Category/Sub-category of 

the Company
: Company having Share Capital

v Address of the Registered 
office & contact details

: 8-2-269/S/3/A, Plot No:3, Sagar Society, Road No:2, Banjara Hills 
Hyderabad - 500 034, Telangana
Ph: 040-42221212. Fax: 040-23540444

vi Whether listed company : Yes (Listed in BSE)
vii Name , Address & contact 

details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any.

: Xl Softech Systems Limited 
Plot No. 3, Sagar Society, Road No.2,  Banjara Hills, 
Hyderabad - 500 034 
Phone No: 040 - 2354 5913 
Email:xlfield@gmail.com

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main
products / services

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

%  to total turnover of
the company

1. Agro Chemicals 2421 100

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary /
Associate

% of shares
held

Applicable
Section

1 Nill Nill Nill Nill Nill

ANNEXURE- IV

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis :Nil
2.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party Nagarjuna Agrichem Limited
Nature of Relation ship Related Party
Nature of contracts / arrangements /transaction Purchase and sale of goods
Duration of the contracts/ arrangements  /transaction 90 days
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction Mutual consent by the parties
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Regular Business Transactions
Date of approval by the Board 6th November, 2015.
Amount incurred during the year (Rs.) Sales: 39,864,009, purchases:31,32,740
Date on which the special resolution was passed in Postal Ballot  as required 
under first proviso to section 110 12-01-2015

All transactions are in the Ordinary Course of Business, at Arm’s Length basis and are of on-going nature. All transactions 
are placed before the Audit Committee of the Company. The terms of these transactions are governed by the respective 
agreements/ terms of purchase.



Annual Report 2016-2017

17

IV
.	

SH
A

R
E 

H
O

LD
IN

G
 P

A
TT

ER
N

 (
Eq

ui
ty

 S
ha

re
 C

ap
it

al
 B

re
ak

up
 a

s 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

To
ta

l 
Eq

ui
ty

)

(i
)	

C
at

eg
or

y-
w

is
e 

Sh
ar

e 
H

ol
di

ng

C
at

eg
or

y 
of

 S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s

N
o.

 o
f 

Sh
ar

es
 h

el
d 

at
 t

he
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 y

ea
r

N
o.

 o
f 

Sh
ar

es
 h

el
d 

at
 t

he
en

d 
of

 t
he

 y
ea

r
%

 c
ha

ng
e 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 

ye
ar

D
em

at
Ph

ys
ic

al
To

ta
l

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l 

Sh
ar

es
D

em
at

Ph
ys

ic
al

To
ta

l
%

 o
f 

To
ta

l 
Sh

ar
es

A
.	

Pr
om

ot
er

s

	
(1

)	
In

di
an

		


a)
	

In
di

vi
du

al
/H

U
F

1,
16

8,
07

4
-

1,
16

8,
07

4
23

.1
1

1,
16

6,
68

7
-

1,
16

6,
68

7
23

.0
9

(0
.0

2)
		


b)

	
C

en
tra

l G
ov

t. 
or

 S
ta

te
 G

ov
t.

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

		


c)
	

B
od

ie
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


d)
	

B
an

k/
FI

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

		


e)
	

A
ny

 o
th

er
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

SU
B

 T
O

TA
L:

(A
) 

(1
)

1,
16

8,
07

4
-

1,
16

8,
07

4
23

.1
1

1,
16

6,
68

7
-

1,
16

6,
68

7
23

.0
9

(0
.0

2)

	
(2

)	
Fo

re
ig

n

		


a)
	

N
R

I- 
In

di
vi

du
al

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


b)
	

O
th

er
 In

di
vi

du
al

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


c)
	

B
od

ie
s 

C
or

p.
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


d)
	

B
an

ks
/F

I
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


e)
	

A
ny

 o
th

er
…

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

SU
B

 T
O

TA
L 

(A
) 
(2

)
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

To
ta

l 
Pr

om
ot

er
 S

ha
re

 h
ol

di
ng

 
(A

)=
 (
A

)(
1)

+
(A

)(
2)

1,
16

8,
07

4
-

1,
16

8,
07

4
23

.1
1

1,
16

6,
68

7
-

1,
16

6,
68

7
23

.0
9

(0
.0

2)

B
.	

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ha
re

ho
ld

in
g

	
1.

	
In

st
ut

io
ns

		


a)
	

M
ut

ua
l F

un
ds

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

		


b)
	

B
an

ks
/F

I
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


c)
	

C
en

tra
l g

ov
t

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

		


d)
	

St
at

e 
G

ov
t

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-



Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited

18

C
at

eg
or

y 
of

 S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s

N
o.

 o
f 

Sh
ar

es
 h

el
d 

at
 t

he
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 y

ea
r

N
o.

 o
f 

Sh
ar

es
 h

el
d 

at
 t

he
en

d 
of

 t
he

 y
ea

r
%

 c
ha

ng
e 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 

ye
ar

D
em

at
Ph

ys
ic

al
To

ta
l

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l 

Sh
ar

es
D

em
at

Ph
ys

ic
al

To
ta

l
%

 o
f 

To
ta

l 
Sh

ar
es

		


e)
	

Ve
nt

ur
e 

C
ap

ita
l F

un
d

-
-

-
-

   
   

   
   

   
  -

-
-

-
-

		


f)	
In

su
ra

nc
e 

C
om

pa
ni

es
-

--
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

		


g)
	

FI
IS

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

		


h)
	

Fo
re

ig
n 

Ve
nt

ur
e 

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
ds

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

		


i)	
O

th
er

s 
(s

pe
ci

fy
)

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

SU
B

 T
O

TA
L 

(B
)(
1)

:
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

2.
	

N
on

 I
ns

tu
ti
on

s

	
a)

	
B

od
ie

s 
co

rp
or

at
e(

In
di

a)
2,

40
4,

74
8

8,
90

0
2,

41
3,

64
8

47
.7

6
2,

50
4,

32
4

8,
90

0
2,

51
3,

22
4

49
.7

3
1.

97

B
od

ie
s 

co
rp

or
at

e(
ov

er
se

as
)

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

	
b)

	
In

di
vi

du
al

s
(i)

	
In

di
vi

du
al

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s 
ho

ld
in

g 
 

no
m

in
al

 s
ha

re
 c

ap
ita

l u
pt

o 
R

s.
1 

la
kh

66
9,

53
1

46
,3

31
71

5,
86

2
14

.1
7

60
5,

65
8

41
,2

31
64

6,
88

9
12

.8
0

(1
.3

7)
ii)

	
In

di
vi

du
al

s 
sh

ar
eh

ol
de

rs
 h

ol
di

ng
 

no
m

in
al

 s
ha

re
 c

ap
ita

l i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f R
s.

 
1 

la
kh

72
2,

51
0

-
72

2,
51

0
14

.3
0

72
0,

22
7

-
72

0,
22

7
14

.2
5

(0
.0

5)

	
c)

	
A

ny
 o

th
er

 (
Sp

ec
if
y)

 N
R

Is
33

,6
06

-
33

,6
06

0.
66

6,
67

3
-

6,
67

3
0.

13
(0

.5
3)

SU
B

 T
O

TA
L 

(B
)(
2)

:
3,

83
0,

39
5

55
,2

31
3,

88
5,

62
6

76
.8

9
3,

83
6,

88
2

50
,1

31
3,

88
7,

01
3

76
.9

1
0.

02
To

ta
l 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ha

re
ho

ld
in

g 
(B

)=
 (
B

)(
1)

+
(B

)(
2)

3,
83

0,
39

5
55

,2
31

3,
88

5,
62

6
76

.8
9

3,
83

6,
88

2
50

,1
31

3,
88

7,
01

3
76

.9
1

0.
02

C
.	

Sh
ar

es
 h

el
d 

by
 C

us
to

di
an

 f
or

 G
D

R
s 

&
 A

D
R

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 (
A

+
B

+
C

)
4,

99
8,

46
9

55
,2

31
5,

05
3,

70
0

10
0

5,
00

3,
56

9
50

,1
31

5,
05

3,
70

0
10

0
-



Annual Report 2016-2017

19

ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

Sl
No

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 
the com-

pany

% of 
Shares 

Pledged 
/ encum-
bered to 

total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 
the com-

pany

%of Shares 
Pledged 
/ encum-
bered to 

total shares

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

1 Singavarapu Ratna Kumari 734,100 14.53 - 734,100 14.53 - -

2 Eadara Jayalaxmi 200,213 3.96 - 200,213 3.96 - -

3 Dodda Sadasivudu 63,600 1.26 - 63,600 1.26 - -

4 Singavarapu Lalitha Sree 60,000 1.19 - 60,000 1.19 - -

5 Singavarapu Chandrasekhar 23,200 0.46 - 23,200 0.46 - -

6 Tatineni Venkata Narasimha Rao 13,800 0.27 - 19,930 0.39 - 0.12

7 T Kalyan Chakravarthi 10,000 0.20 - 10,000 0.20 - -

8 K Baby 10,000 0.20 - 10,000 0.20 - -

9 Tatineni Ammaji 8,600 0.17 - - - -   (0.17)

10 Kasukurthi Bhavani Shankar 7,000 0.14 - 7,000 0.14 - -

11 Tatineni Sridhar 6,100 0.12 - 6,100 0.12 - -

12 Kudaravalli Rama Krishna 5,000 0.10 - 5,000 0.10 - -

13 B Vasantha Bai 5,000 0.10 - 5,000 0.10 - -

14 Kudaravalli Sri Lakshmi 4,500 0.09 - 4,500 0.09 - -

15 Katragadda Chinnammai 4,000 0.08 - 4,000 0.08 - -

16 Chalasani Niranjan 3,000 0.06 - 3,000 0.06 - -

17 Potini Vijayalakshmi 100 0.00 - 2,570 0.05 - 0.05

18 K. Samarjyam 2,500 0.05 - 2,500 0.05 - -

19 Kadiyala Venkateswara Rao 2,500 0.05 - 2,500 0.05 - -

20 Kanakamedala Leela 1,610 0.03 - 1,500 0.03 - -

21 Uppaluri Sai Prasanna 1,351 0.03 - - - -   (0.03)

22 Tatineni Vallika devi 1,200 0.02 - 1,200 0.02 - -

23 Inapuri Radha Krishna Rao 600 0.01 - 674 0.01 - -

24 Mulpuri Katyayani 100 0.00 - 100 0.00 - -

(iii)	 Change in Promoters Shareholding 

Sl.
No. Shareholders Name

Shareholding
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

1. Tatineni Venkata Narasimha Rao 13,800 0.27 19,930 0.39

2. Tatineni Ammaji 8,600 0.17 - -

3. Potini Viajyalakshmi 	              100 0.00 2,570 0.05

4. Kankamedala Leela 1,610 0.03 1,500 0.03

5. Uppaluri sai Prasanna 1,351 0.03 - -

6. Inapuri Radha Krishna Rao 600 0.01                  674 0.01
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(iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl.
No Name of the Shareholder

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

1. Nagarjuna Impex Private Limited 510,300 10.10 510,300 10.10
2. Royal Touch Multi Trade Private 

Limited
396,600 7.85 396,600 7.85

3. V V S S Estates Private Limited 239,500 4.74 239,500 4.74
4. Chinnar Securities Private Limited 230,100 4.55 230,100 4.55
5. Liza Multitrade Private Limited 208,348 4.12 208,348 4.12
6. S S V V Agro Farms Private Limited 201,500 3.99 201,500 3.99

7. V V S S Agro Farms Private Limited 200,500 3.97 200,500 3.97
8. Amlika Mercantile Private Limited  -       - 166,591              3.30 
9. Angel holdings Private Limited 114,465 2.26 114,465 2.26

10. R.Venkata Narayana 	 56,458 1.12 100,000 1.98

(v)	 Shareholding of Directors:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the year 

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

1. S. Chandra Sekhar 23,200 0.46 23,200 0.46

2. S. Lalitha Sree 60,000 1.19 60,000 1.19

3. D. Sadasivudu 63,600 1.26 63,600 1.26

(vi)	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment	 `

Particulars
Secured Loans 

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness  

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year. 
i)	 Principal Amount 164,531,555 47,690,754 - 212,222,309
ii)	 Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 164,531,555 47,690,754 - 212,222,309
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 
Addition - 150,600,000 - 150,600,000
Reduction 36,296,928 18,604,670 - 54,901,598
Net Change -36,296,928 131,995,330 - 95,698,402

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 
i)	 Principal Amount 128,234,627 179,686,084 - 307,920,711
ii)	 Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due - 1,296,193 - 1,296,193
Total (i+ii+iii) 128,234,627 180,982,277 - 309,216,904
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(vii)	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager	 `

Sl.
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD
Total Amount 

S. Chandra Sekhar
1. Gross salary

(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 

3,859,200 3,859,200

(b)	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax  Act, 1961 - -
(c)	 Profit in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of Income Tax At, 1961 - -

2. Stock option - -
3. Sweat Equity - -
4. Commission

- as % of profits - -
- others - -

5. Others - -
Total A 3,859,200 3,859,200
Ceiling as per the Act Rs.4,200,000/- (Section 196 & 197 

read with schedule V)

B.	 Remuneration to other Directors	 `

Sl.
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors
Total Amount

D. Ranga Raju Sudhakar kudva
1. Independent Directors 

•	 Fee for attending board / committee meetings 
•	 Commission 
•	 Others

90,000
-
-

90,000
-
-

180,000
-
-

Total (1) 90,000 90,000 180,000

Sl.
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors Total Amount

K.S Raju D. Sadasivudu S. Lalithasree
2. Other Non-Executive Directors

•	 Fee for attending board / 
committee meetings 

•	 Commission 
•	 Others

20,000

-
-

40,000

-
-

30,000

-
-

90,000

-
-

Total (2) 20,000 40,000 30,000 90,000

Total (B) = (1)+(2) 270,000
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C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD	 `

Sl.
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel
Total

Amount
B. Murali A. Arvind 

Kumar
B.N. Suvarchala

1. Gross salary
(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
3,090,313 2,572,800 396,820 6,059,933

(b)	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income 
Tax  Act, 1961

- - - -

(c)	 Profit in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of Income 
Tax At, 1961

- - - -

2. Stock option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission

- as % of profits - - - -
- others - - - -

5. Others - - - -
Total A 3,090,313 2,572,800 396,820 6,059,933

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of the offences for breach of any Section of Companies Act 
against the Company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the year.
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ANNEXURE -VI

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

(Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015)

In accordance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and some 
of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance, the report containing the details of corporate 
governance systems and processes at Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited is as under:

1.	 Company’s philosophy on code of governance

	 The Company recognizes the importance of good Corporate Governance, which is a tool for building a strong and 
everlasting beneficial relationship with the customers, suppliers, bankers and more importantly with the investors.

	 The Company believes that its key decisions must serve the underlying goals of enhancing shareholders’ value over 
a sustained period of time, and achieving the definite and measurable performance targets.

2.	 Board of Directors:

	 i)	 Composition:

		  The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors who have an in-depth knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise in their areas 
of specialization. The Board of the Company comprises Six Directors that includes one Women Director.

The details of other chairmanship / Directorship / committee membership of each Director as on 31st March 
2017 is given below:

Name  of Director
Relationship 
with other 
Directors

No of 
Shares Category

Number of 
Directorships in
other companies

Number  of Committee 
Memberships in other 

companies
Chairman Member Chairman Member

D. Ranga Raju Nil Nil Non-Executive & 
Independent 1 2 1 -

Sudhakar Kudva Nil Nil Non-Executive & 
Independent - 1 - 2

K.S. Raju Nil Nil Non-Executive & 
Non Independent 2 5 - 3

D. Sadasivudu Nil 63,600 N o n - E x e c u t i v e 
Promoter None None None None

S. Chandra Sekhar Nil 23,200 Executive Promoter None None None None

S. Lalitha Sree
Wife of Shri. 
S. Chandra 

Sekhar

60,000 Non Executive & 
Non Independent 
Woman Director

None None None None

All the Independent Directors of the Company at the time of their first appointment to the Board and thereafter at the first 
meeting of the Board in every financial year give a declaration that they meet with the criteria of independence as provided 
under Companies Act, 2013 and Reg. 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

Notes:

-	 Other Directorships exclude Foreign Companies, Private Limited Companies and Alternate Directorships.

-	 Only membership in Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been reckoned for other committee 
memberships.

	 (ii)	 Meetings & Attendance

	 The Board generally meets 4 times during the year. The Directors are also given option of attending the Board 
Meeting through video conferencing, none of the board meeting was held through video conferencing. During 
the year ended 31st  March, 2017, the Board of Directors had 4 meetings. These were held on 25th May, 2016, 
12th August, 2016, 12th November, 2016 and 13th, February, 2017. The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) was 
held on 12th August 2016. All relevant information as required under Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 was placed before the Board from time to time.
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	 The attendance record of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year ended 31st March, 2017 and at 
the last AGM as under

Sl. 
No. Name of the Director Category

No of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance
at last AGM

1. D. Ranga Raju Chairman, Non-Executive, Independent 4 of 4 Yes
2. Sudhakar Kudva Non-Executive, Independent 4 of 4 Yes
3. K.S. Raju Non-Executive, Non-Independent 2 of 4 No
4. D. Sadasivudu Non-Executive, Non-Independent 3 of 4 Yes
5. S. Chandra Sekhar Managing Director 4 of 4 Yes
6. S. Lalitha Sree Non-Executive, Non-Independent 3 of 4 No

iii)	 Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 

		  As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing (Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company 
was held on 13th February, 2017 to review the performance of Non-independent Directors (including the 
Chairman) and the Board as whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness 
of the flow of information between the Management and the Board and its Committees which is necessary to 
effectively and reasonably perform and discharge their duties. The Independent Directors found the performance 
of Non-Independent Directors (including Chairman) and the Board as well as flow of information between the 
Management and the Board to be satisfactory. All independent directors were present in the Meeting.

(iv)	 Induction & Training of Board Members

	 (Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors) Letter of Appointment(s) are issued to Independent 
Directors setting out in detail, the terms of appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. 
Each newly appointed Director is taken through a formal induction program including the presentation from the 
Chairman cum Managing Director and CEO & Whole Time Director on the Company’s manufacturing, marketing, 
finance and other important aspects. The web link for the Familiarisation Programmes for Independent Directors 
is http://www.bhagirad.com/reports/id/Familiarization-Programme-ID.pdf

(v)	 Evaluation of the Board’s Performance

	 The Board has a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as that of its Committees and 
individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board based on the criteria laid down by Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee which included attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent 
judgment, safeguarding of minority shareholders interest, adherence to Code of Conduct and Business ethics, 
monitoring of regulatory compliance, risk assessment and review of Internal Control Systems etc.

3.	 Audit Committee 

(i)	 Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

	 The Board has reconstituted its Audit Committee in accordance with section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015. The composition of the Audit Committee is given below.

Name Category Position
Shri Sudhakar Kudva Independent & Non executive Chairman
Shri D. Ranga Raju Independent & Non Executive Member
Shri S.Chandra Sekhar Managing Director& Promoter Member

ii)	 Terms of Reference 

	 The Audit Committee reviews the audit reports submitted by the Internal Auditors, Cost Auditors and Statutory 
Auditors, financial results, effectiveness of internal audit processes and the Company’s risk management strategy. 
It reviews the Company’s established systems and the Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with 
the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.
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iii)	 Meeting and Attendance during the year 

	 During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the audit committee were held on the followings dates: 
25th May 2016; 12th August 2016; 12th November 2016 and 13th February 2017. The attendance of each of 
the members of the Committee is given below:

Date of Meeting D. Ranga Raju Sudhakar Kudva S. Chandra  Sekhar
25.05.2016 Yes Yes Yes
12.08.2016 Yes Yes Yes
12.11.2016 Yes Yes Yes
13.02.2017 Yes Yes Yes
Total number of meetings attended 4 4 4

	 The Chief Financial Officer and the Statutory Auditors also attended the meetings. The Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

4.	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee

i)	 Composition and attendance during the year:

	 The committee comprises of Shri D. Ranga Raju, Shri Sudhakar Kudva and Shri K.S. Raju are the members of 
the remuneration committee. The Chairman of the Committee is Shri Sudhakar Kudva who is a non-executive 
independent director. The company secretary is the secretary to the committee.

	 During the year the Committee had not conducted any meeting. 

Name of the Director Position No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Sudhakar Kudva Chairman - -

Mr. D. Ranga Raju Member - -

Mr. K.S. Raju Member - -

ii)	 Terms of reference

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assist the Board in overseeing the method, criteria and quantum 
of compensation for directors and senior management based on their performance and defined assessment 
criteria. The Committee formulates the criteria for evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors & the 
Board of Directors; identifying the persons who are qualified to become directors, and who may be appointed 
in senior management and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The terms of the reference 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the areas mentioned under Part D of Schedule II of SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 as well as section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(iii)	 Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors which are as under

Areas of evaluation

1.	 Frequency of meetings attended 

2.	 Timeliness of circulating Agenda for meetings and descriptiveness

3.	 Quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information to the Board

4.	 Promptness with which Minutes of the meetings are drawn and circulated

5.	 Opportunity to discuss matters of critical importance, before decisions are made

6.	 Familiarity with the objects, operations and other functions of the company 

7.	 Importance given to Internal Audit Reports, Management responses and steps towards improvement 

8.	 Avoidance of conflict of interest 

9.	 Exercise of fiscal oversight and monitoring financial performance 
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10.	 Level of monitoring of Corporate Governance Regulations and compliance 

11.	 Adherence to Code of Conduct and Business ethics by directors individually and collectively 

12.	 Monitoring of Regulatory compliances and risk assessment 

13.	 Review of Internal Control Systems 

14.	 Performance of the Chairperson of the company including leadership qualities.  

15.	 Overall performances of the Board/ Committees.

5.	 Remuneration of Directors:

(i)	 There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Non-Executive Directors and the company 
during the financial year 2016-2017.

(ii)	 Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors: 

	 Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) decided by the Board is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking into consideration the challenges 
faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives).

	 a)	 Remuneration / Commission: The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions 
mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.

	 b)	 Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for 
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed 
Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central 
Government from time to time.

	 c)	 Commission: Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to 
the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of 
the Act. 

	 d)	 Stock Options: An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. Payment 
criteria of Non-Executive directors are the given in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. The web 
link for the same is

	 http://www.bhagirad.com/reports/policy/Nomination%20and%20remuneration%20policy.pdf

(iii)	 Details of Remuneration to Directors

	 The details of remuneration and other benefits paid to the Managing Director during the year as follows:

(Amount in `)

Name Salary & 
allowances

Other Benefits Designation Gross 
Remuneration

S. Chandra Sekhar 3,859,200 - Managing Director 3,859,200

For Non- Executive Directors

Sitting fee paid to Non-Executive Directors is as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Relationship with other 
Directors

Sitting Fees

1. D. Ranga Raju Nil 90,000

2. Sudhakar Kudva Nil 90,000

3. K.S. Raju Nil 20,000

4. D. Sadasivudu Nil 40,000

5. S. Lalitha Sree Wife of Sri S. Chandra Sekhar 30,000

TOTAL 270,000

	 Other than payment of sitting fees to Non-executive Directors, there was no material pecuniary relationship 
or transaction with the Company. The Company has not issued any stock options to its Directors/ Employees.
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6.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

i)	 The Stakeholder Relationship Committee looks into shareholders and investors grievances. Shri. D. Ranga 
Raju, Non-Executive Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee. 

ii)	 The details of the meetings held during the year as under

	 During the period the company had held one committee meeting i.e., 12th November, 2016.

Director position Meetings Held Meetings Attended

D. Ranga Raju (Chairman) Non-Executive Independent Director 1 1

Sudhakar Kudva(Member) Non-Executive Independent Director 1 1

D. Sadasivudu(Member) Non-Executive  Director 1 1

iii)	 No. of investors complaints received by the RTA/ Company during the year: Nil

	 No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders during the year: Nil 

	 No. of complaints pending as at 31st March, 2017: Nil

Smt B.N. Suvarchala, Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Compliance Officer to the Committee.

7.	 General Body Meetings: 

i)	 Location and time for the last three AGMs:

Year Date Venue Time Special Resolution
2013-14 11.08.2014 Hotel Mary Gold,

Ameerpet, Hyderabad
11.00 A.M Nil

2014-15 08.08.2015 Hotel Green Park,
Ameerpet, Hyderabad

11.00A.M 1.	To Re-Appoint Shri S. Chandra Sekhar 
Managing Director

2.	To alter the AOA of the company in conformity 
with the companies Act, 2013

2015-16 12.08.2016 Hotel Green Park,
Ameerpet, Hyderabad

11.00 A.M Nil

ii).	 There were no Extraordinary General Meetings in the last three years 

iii).	 One postal ballot was held during the year: 

Postal Ballot Notice dated 13.02.2017

The company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its members on the following resolutions 
through postal ballot during the financial year.

Item No 1:	 To re-classify the 12 existing promoters into public category

Item No 2:	 To increase the Authorized share capital of the company from Rs.6 Crore to Rs. 10 Crore.

Voting Pattern and Procedure for Postal Ballot:

i.	 The Company appointed Mr. Y. Ravi Prasada Reddy(CP No:5360) as the Scrutinizer for conducting the postal 
ballot voting process.

ii.	 The Company completed the dispatch of the Postal Ballot Notice dated 13th February, 2017 together with the 
Explanatory Statement on 19th February, 2017 along with forms and postage prepaid business reply envelopes to 
all the shareholders whose name(s) appeared on the Register of Members/list of beneficiaries as on 10th February 
2017.

iii.	 The voting under the postal ballot was kept open from 10.00 a.m. on 20th February, 2017 and end at 5.00 p.m. 
on 23rd March 2017. (physically or through electronic mode)

iv.	 Particulars of postal ballot forms received from the Members using the electronic platform of CDSL were entered 
in a register separately maintained for the purpose.

v.	 The postal ballot forms were kept under his safe custody in sealed and tamper proof ballot boxes before 
commencing the scrutiny of such postal ballot forms.
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	 vi.	 Envelopes containing postal ballot forms received after close of business hours on 23rd March, 2017 had not 
been considered for his scrutiny.

	 vii.	 On 24th  March, 2017 at the Registered Office of the company Chairman announced the following results of the 
postal ballot as per the Scrutinizer’s Report.

To re-classify 
the 12 existing 
promoters 
into public 
category

Particulars Total No. 
of
Votes

Votes 
Assenting
the 
Resolution

% of 
Votes
Cast

Votes 
Dissenting
the 
Resolution

% of 
Votes
Cast

Votes
invalid

% of 
Votes
Cast

Votes cast 
through 
Electronic 
mode

3152858 3151957 99.97 901 0.03 0 0.00

Votes cast 
through 
physical 
postal 
ballots

569 566 99.47 3 0.53 0 0.00

Total 3153427 3151923 99.95 904 0.05 0 0.00

To increase 
the Authorised 
share capital 
of the 
company from 
Rs.6 Crore to 
Rs. 10 Crore

Particulars Total No. 
of
Votes

Votes 
Assenting
the 
Resolution

% of 
Votes
Cast

Votes 
Dissenting
the 
Resolution

% of 
Votes
Cast

Votes
invalid

% of 
Votes
Cast

Votes cast 
through 
Electronic 
mode

3152858 3152858 100.00 1 0.00 0 0.00

Votes cast 
through 
Physical 
postal 
ballots

569 569 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Total 3153427 3152526 100.00 1 0.00 0 0.00

Results:

ITEM N0 1:

As the number of votes casted in favor is 3151923 i.e., 99.95%, of the Resolutions is more than three times the number of 
votes cast against 904 i.e. 0.05%.

ITEM NO 2:

As the number of votes casted in favor is 3152526 i.e., 100%, of the Resolutions is more than three times the number of 
votes cast against 1 i.e. 0.00%.

8.	 Means of Communication:

Quarterly results approved by the Board are usually published in Business Standard (English) and Praja shakti/Andhra 
Prabha/Nava Telangana (Telugu) newspapers. In addition to this the Company is communicating its results to Bombay 
Stock Exchange where the shares are listed. Further, the quarterly results are also placed on the company’s website, 
www.bhagirad.com No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts.
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9.	 General Shareholder information

	 i)	 Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting	
		  Date		  :  26th September, 2017
		  Day		  :  Tuesday
		  Time		  :  11.00 AM
		  Venue		  :  Green Park Hotel
	 ii)	 Financial Year		  :  April to March
	 iii)	 Date of book closure		  :  18-09-2017 to 26-09-2017 (both days inclusive)
	 iv)	 Listing on Stock Exchange		  :  Bombay Stock Exchange
	 v)	 Stock Code
		  ISIN Under Depositary System		  INE 414D01019
		  Stock Exchange Mumbai		  531719
		  The Listing Fee as applicable have been paid within prescribed time period

vi).	 Market price data

The monthly high and low price quotations of the company’s shares at the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited is given 
below:

Month High Low
April 2016 148.50 102.00
May  2016 155.00 120.00
June 2016 164.90 130.00
July  2016 152.00 112.20
August 2016 180.20 101.00
September 2016 185.00 129.00
October 2016 175.00 144.05
November 2016 172.00 120.25
December 2016 188.90  139.00
January 2017 186.70 152.00
February 2017 169.00 143.50
March 2017 194.40 152.85

vii)	 Performance of the share price of the company in comparison to BSE Sensex for the period 1st 
April,2016 to 31st March, 2017 is given below:
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Month BCIL CLOSE share 
price at BSE BSE SENSEX Close

Relative index for Comparison purpose
BCIL Share
Price at BSE BSE SENSEX

April 2016 130.00 25606.62 115.71 101.04 

May 2016 130.00 26667.96 115.71 105.23

June 2016 145.25 26,999.72 129.28 106.54

July 2016 116.75 28,051.86 103.92 110.69

August 2016 155.45 28,452.17 138.36 112.27

September 2016 153.75 27,865.96 136.85 109.96

October 2016 167.90 27930.21 149.44 110.21

November 2016 134.15 26652.81 119.40 105.17

December 2016 172.85 26626.46 153.85 105.07

January 2017 164.75 27655.96 146.64 109.13

February 2017 153.00 28743.32 136.18 113.42

March 2017 173.95 29620.50 154.83 116.88

Source: www.bseindia.com

viii)	 Registrars & Transfer Agents:
XL Softech Systems Limited
8-2-269/S/3/A, Plot No. 3,
Sagar Society, Road No. 2,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034
Phone: 91-40-23545913/5 Fax : 91-40-23553214
E-mail : xlfield@gmail.com

ix)	 Share Transfer System

In order to expedite the process of share transfers, the Board has delegated the power to approve share transfers 
to senior executives, who attend to share transfer formalities fortnightly. The Company has appointed XL Softech 
Systems Limited as Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for physical transfer of securities as well as dematerialization/ 
re-materialization of securities.

x)	 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2017

Sl.
No.

Shareholding of
nominal value

Number of
shareholders

percentage of
shareholders

number of
shares held

percentage of
shares held

1 upto 5000 1581 82.65 1864650 3.69
2 5001-10000 138 7.21 1123940 2.22
3 10001-20000 62 3.24 947670 1.88
4 20001-30000 40 2.09 1011890 2.00
5 30001-40000 12 0.63 443400 0.88
6 40001-50000 16 0.84 757840 1.50
7 50001-100000 24 1.25 1737470 3.44
8 Above 100000 40 2.09 42650140 84.39

Total  1913 100.00 5053700 100.00
Sl. No. Mode of Holding

1 PHYSICAL  63 3.29 50131 0.99
2 DEMAT  1850 96.71 5003569 99.01

  TOTAL 1913 100 5053700 100
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xi)	 Categories of Shareholding as on 31st March 2017:

Category No. of shares held No. of shareholders % to Equity

Promoters & Person acting concert 1,166,687 23 23.08
Bodies Corporate 2,513,178 67 49.72
Indian Public 1,367,116 1,796 27.05
Non Resident Indian 6,673 24 0.13
Clearing Members 46 3 0.00
Total 5,053,700 1,913 100.00

*49100 shares have been forfeited, hence not included in the total shareholding.

xii)	 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the 
depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL). Dematerialization of shares is done through  M/s. XL Softech Systems Limited, Hyderabad and on an average 
the dematerialization process is completed within a period of 15 days from receipt of a valid demat request along 
with all documents. 

Electronic/Physical No. of shares %
Demat 5,003,569 99.01
Physical 50,131 0.99
Total 5,053,700 100.00

* 49,100 Equity shares were forfeited at the Board Meeting held on 28-01-2006.

xiii)	 Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/ Convertible instruments

	 The Company has not issued Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipt or Warrants or any Convertible 
instruments.

(xiv)	Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging. The Company did not engage in hedging activities.

(xv)	 Plant location	

	 Cheruvukommupalem (Village) -523 272. Ongole (Mandal) Prakasam (District) Andhra Pradesh.

(Xvi)	Address for correspondence

Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited.

8-2-269/S/3/A, Plot No. 3,Sagar Society, Road No. 2 Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034,Tel. (040) 42221212, Fax 
(040) 23540444,Email : info@bhagirad.com.

10.	 Other Disclosures

(i)	 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2017 there were no materially significant related party transactions 
that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

(ii)	 There were no penalties imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any capital market 
related matters during the last three years. 

(iii)	 The Company has announced Vigil Mechanism for adequate safeguards aganist victimization of all the personnel 
of the company to avail the mechanisim and and also provide direct access  to the chairperson of the Audit 
Committee. 

(iv)	 The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulation. The Company has 
adopted various non-mandatory requirements as well.

(v)	 The company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and is placed on the Company’s website and the web 
link for the same is http://www.bhagirad.com/reports/policy/realted-party-policy.pdf 

(vi)	 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2017 the company did not engage in commodity hedging 
activities.	

11.	 There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report.
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ANNUAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE F.Y:2016-2017.

Pursuant to the schedule V(Part D) of SEBI(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. I hereby 
confirm that the company has received affirmations on compliance with code of conduct for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2017 from all the Board members and senior Management Personnel.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Hyderabad	 S. Chandra Sekhar
Date: 29.08.2017	 Managing Director

THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

We, S. Chandra Sekhar, Managing Director and B. Murali, Chief Financial officer of Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries 
Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a)	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year under review and certify 
that:	

i.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material   facts or contain statements 
that might be misleading.

ii.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b)	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

(c)	 We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the 
effectiveness and disclosed to the auditors and audit committee, the deficiencies in the design and operation of such 
internal controls and the steps taken to rectify these deficiencies.

(d)	 We have indicated to the auditors and the audit committee that  

i.	 there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year

ii.	 there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

iii.	 there are no frauds of which we are aware, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the company’s internal controls system.

S. Chandra Sekhar
Managing Director

Place	: Hyderabad	 B. Murali 
Date	 :	 22.05.2017	 Chief Financial Officer
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

To the Members of 
BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED.‑

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited 
(‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 March, 2017, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 
(2) of regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) with Stock Exchange in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For R Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.: 000442S

Uttam Kumar Singhi
Place	 :	Hyderabad	 Partner
Date	 :	22.05.2017	 Membership No. : 027481/ICAI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited  
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility For the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
Under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken 
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act.  Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has a place an 
adequate financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31-03-2017 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the Annexure - ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books;

	 c)	 the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement, dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

	 d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014;

	 e)	 on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, 
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls over Financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure - B” ; and

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rule, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
& according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31.03.2017 which would impact its 
financial position.

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts as at 
31.03.2017 for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

		  iv.	 The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings as 
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th 
December, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying on the management representation we 
report that the disclosures are in accordance with books of account maintained by the Company 
and as produced to us by the Management – Refer Note No. 24 (B) (xv).

For R Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regi. No.: 000442S

Uttam Kumar Singhi
Place	:	Hyderabad	 Partner
Date	 :	22.05.2017	 Membership No. : 027481/ICAI
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the head “Report on other legal & regulatory requirements” of our report of even date.

i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 All the Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 As per the documents verified by us and explanation given to us, all the Title Deeds of immovable properties 
are held in the name of the company.              

ii)	 The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management in our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared 
to book records.

iii)	 The company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or 
other parties who are covered in the register maintained under section 189 of Companies Act, 2013, accordingly 
Clause (iii a),(iii b ) and (iii c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

iv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any  loans, guarantees and 
security and made investments, as per section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and as per the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.

vi)	 The company has maintained cost records as specified by the Central  Government under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

vii)	 (a)	 According to the information & explanations given to us, none of the undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and any other Statutory Dues were outstanding as at last day of the financial year 
concerned for a period of more than six months.

	 (b)	 According to the information & explanations given to us, there is no dues in respect of  disputed amount to be 
deposited in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax as on 
31st March, 2017.

viii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowing to the financial institutions, bank, government or dues to debenture holders.

ix)	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and  term loans during the year.

x)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company 
by its officers/employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.  

xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid and  provided managerial 
remuneration during the year as per the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

xii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.  Accordingly, 
Clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related party are in compliance 
with section 177 & 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the same has been disclosed in financial statements as required 
by the Accounting  Standards.

xiv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into Non Cash Transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him during the year.

xvi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of Reserve Bank Of India.

For R Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regi. No.: 000442S

Uttam Kumar Singhi
Place	 :	Hyderabad	 Partner
Date	 :	22.05.2017	 Membership No. : 027481/ICAI
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of 
Bhagiradha Chemicals & industries Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies  
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted  our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

	 (1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

	 (2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
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receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

	 (3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regi. No.: 000442S

Uttam Kumar Singhi
Place	:	Hyderabad	 Partner
Date	 :	22.05.2017	 Membership No. : 027481/ICAI
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017	 `

Particulars Note  AS AT
31.03.2017 

 AS AT
31.03.2016 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ funds

(a)	 Share capital
(b)	 Reserves and surplus

1
2

 50,782,500 
431,063,423 

 50,782,500 
 410,749,084 

 481,845,923 
 461,531,584 

(2) Non-current liabilities
(a)	 Long-term borrowings
(b)	 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

3
4

 122,171,290 
 18,940,467 

 167,959,276 
 12,704,520 

 141,111,757  180,663,796 
(3) Current liabilities

(a)	 Short-term borrowings
(b)	 Trade payables
(c)	 Other current liabilities
(d)	 Short-term provisions

5
6
7
8

 487,211,647 
 781,819,354 
 155,142,555 

 430,548 

 410,297,850 
 609,938,798 
 129,658,391 

 62,162 
1,424,604,104 1,149,957,201 

Total 2,047,561,784 1,792,152,581 
ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a)	 Fixed assets

(i)	 Tangible assets
(ii)	 Intangible assets
(iii)	 Capital work-in-progress

9
 687,207,686 

 132,907 
 - 

663,366,959 
 - 
 - 

 687,340,593  663,366,959 
(b)	 Long-term loans and advances 10  43,863,044  43,187,412 

 731,203,637  706,554,371 

(2) Current assets
(a)	 Inventories
(b)	 Trade receivables
(c)	 Cash and cash equivalents
(d)	 Short-term loans and advances
(e)	 Other current assets

11
12
13
14
15

1,061,580,910 
 171,257,738 
 14,054,763 
 67,895,605 
 1,569,131 

 721,037,661 
 278,306,136 
 14,384,023 
 70,665,660 

 1,204,730 

1,316,358,147 1,085,598,210 

Total 2,047,561,784 1,792,152,581 
Significant Accounting Policies, Notes on  
Financial Statements

1-23

As per our attached report of even date 	 For and on behalf of the Board
For R. Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants	
Firm Regn No.000442S	

	 D. Ranga Raju	 S. Chandra Sekhar
Uttam Kumar Singhi 	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Partner	 DIN: 00066546	 DIN: 00159543
Membership No.027481	

Place: Hyderabad	 B.Murali	 B.N.Suvarchala
Date : 22.05.2017	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR  ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017	 `

Particulars Note
For The Year Ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations (gross) 16  2,210,539,585  1,641,541,677 

Less: Taxes & Duties  179,581,242  138,847,451 

Revenue from operations (net)  2,030,958,343  1,502,694,226 

Other income 17  18,276,712  10,391,786 

Total Revenue  2,049,235,055  1,513,086,012 

EXPENSES
Cost of  Raw Materials Consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Stock-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

18

19

20

21

9

22

 1,486,709,217 

 (86,669,934)

 117,287,672 

 61,949,923 

 38,359,763 

 405,093,657 

 1,239,091,071 

 (210,199,896)

 

98,813,285 

 66,061,013 

 36,338,190 

 335,855,272 

Total expenses  2,022,730,298  1,565,958,935 

Profit before extraordinary items and tax  26,504,757 (52,872,923)

Profit before tax  26,504,757  (52,872,923)
Tax expense:

Current tax

Earlier Years

MAT Credit Entitlement

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

 - 

 (45,528)

 - 

 6,235,947 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 (20,789,332)

 6,190,419  (20,789,332)

Profit / (Loss) (after tax) for the year  20,314,338  (32,083,592)

Earnings per equity share

Basic & Diluted  4.02  (6.35)

Significant Accounting Policies, Notes on Financial Statements 1-23

As per our attached report of even date 	 For and on behalf of the Board
For R. Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants	
Firm Regn No.000442S	

	 D. Ranga Raju	 S. Chandra Sekhar
Uttam Kumar Singhi 	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Partner	 DIN: 00066546	 DIN: 00159543
Membership No.027481	

Place: Hyderabad	 B.Murali	 B.N.Suvarchala
Date : 22.05.2017	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017	 `

Particulars
For The Year Ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax  26,504,757  (52,872,923)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation  38,359,763  36,338,190 
Profit on Sale of Assets  -  (7,986,956)
Interest Expenses  61,949,923  70,170,042 
Interest Income  (2,099,844)  (1,659,008)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  124,714,599  43,989,345 
Adjustments for:
Sundry Debtors  107,048,398  212,614,892 
Inventories  (340,543,249)  (89,957,074)
Loans and Advances  1,697,351  25,315,270 
Trade Payables & Provisions  190,804,957  (9,560,575)

 (40,992,543)  138,412,513 
Cash Generated From Operations  83,722,056  182,401,858 

Income Tax  (723,381)  (2,040,589)
Income Tax Refund  1,233,241  - 

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities  84,231,916  180,361,269 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (62,333,397)  (30,875,758)
Sale of Assets  25,100,100 
Interest Received  2,221,095  763,980 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  (60,112,302)  (5,011,678)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bank borrowings for working capital  (60,252,777)  (86,411,971)
Term Loan Received  -  15,155,925 
Term Loan Payment  (35,330,458)  (25,000,000)
Sales tax Deferment paid  (3,604,670)  - 
Receipt of sales tax loan  -  3,185,266 
Unsecured Loan received  151,000,000 
Unsecured Loan repaid  (15,000,000)
Interest paid  (60,653,730)  (70,170,042)
Dividend Tax paid  -  - 
Dividend Paid  (121,590)  (5,118,886)

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities  (23,963,225)  (168,359,708)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  156,389  6,989,884 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period *  13,898,374  6,908,490 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period *  14,054,763  13,898,374 

* Cash and cash equivalents includes margin money and unpaid dividend account balances

As per our attached report of even date 	 For and on behalf of the Board
For R. Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants	
Firm Regn No.000442S	

	 D. Ranga Raju	 S. Chandra Sekhar
Uttam Kumar Singhi 	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Partner	 DIN: 00066546	 DIN: 00159543
Membership No.027481	

Place: Hyderabad	 B.Murali	 B.N.Suvarchala
Date : 22.05.2017	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2017

NOTES : 1 SHARE CAPITAL	 `
Sl. 
No. Particulars For The Year Ended  

31.03.2017
For The Year Ended  

31.03.2016

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

100,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with Voting 

Rights

(Previous Year 60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 

with Voting Rights)

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED

51,02,800  Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with Voting 

Rights

PAID UP

50,53,700 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with Voting Rights

Add : Forfeited Shares (amount originally paid up)

100,000,000 

 

51,028,000 

 

50,537,000 

 245,500 

60,000,000 

 

51,028,000 

 50,537,000 

 245,500 
Total  50,782,500  50,782,500 

1.1	 DETAILS OF SHARES HELD BY EACH SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES

Sl.
No.

Class Of Shares / Name Of Shareholders
 Number of  
shares held 

 % of holding 
 in that class  

 of shares 

 Number of  
 shares held 

 % of holding 
 in that class  

 of shares 
Equity shares with Voting rights

1 S Ratna Kumari  734,100  14.53  734,100  14.53 

2 Nagarjuna Impex Pvt Limited  510,300  10.10  510,300  10.10 

3 Royal Touch Multitrade Pvt Ltd  396,600  7.85  396,600  7.85 

1.2	 Details of Forfeited Shares

Class of Shares

 As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016 

 Number of 
Shares 

Amount  
Originally  
Paid Up `

 Number of 
Shares 

Amount  
Originally  
Paid Up `

Equity Shares with Voting Rights  49,100  245,500  49,100  245,500 

NOTES : 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016 

2.1 General Reserve 

Opening Balance  90,273,859  90,273,859 

Closing Balance  90,273,859  90,273,859 

2.2 Surplus - Profit & Loss Account

Opening Balance  320,475,226  352,558,818 

Add: Profit/(Loss)  for the year  20,314,338  (32,083,592)

 340,789,564  320,475,226 

Closing Balance  340,789,564  320,475,226 

Total  431,063,423  410,749,085
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NOTES : 3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 

31/03/2017
 As At 

31/03/2016

A.

B.

Term Loan
Secured
Bank of India - Term Loan 
Deferred Payment Liabilities
Unsecured
Sales Tax Deferment

 88,234,627 
 

33,936,663 

 

128,565,080 

 39,394,196 

Total  122,171,290  167,959,276 
3.1	 The Term Loan is secured by  Exclusive charge on  fixed assets created out of term loan and second charge on 

the fixed assets of the  Company (both present and future) by way of hypothecation of movable fixed assets and 
equitable mortgage of immovable fixed assets of the company and personal guarantee of Mr.S.Chandra Sekhar 
Managing  Director of the company, Smt.S.Lalitha Sree, Director  and Smt.S.Ratna Kumari.

3.2	 Terms of repayment of Term Loans :	 `

Bank Rate of Interest %
Balance as on 
31.03.2017

Rate of Interest %
Balance as on 
31.03.2016

Bank of  India 1 Year MCLR  Rate + 4.15%  48,963,974 Base Rate + 3.80%  69,537,506 
Bank of  India 1 Year MCLR  Rate + 4.15%  79,270,653 Base Rate + 3.80%  94,027,574 

3.3	 Deferred payment Liabilities :

	 Government of Andhra Pradesh vide letter No.20/2/6/1369/ID dated 08-10-1996 and letter No.30/1/2002/0300/0300/
FD dated 10-04-2002 had sanctioned sales tax deferment for an amount of Rs.9,18,54,000/- and Rs. 5,14,50,510/- 
respectively for a period of 14 years to the company in respect of chlorpyriphos plant. The sanction of Rs.9,18,54,000/- 
under letter No.20/2/6/1369/ID dated 08-10-1996 has expired its utilization on 28th February, 2010 and sanction 
of Rs.5,14,50,510/- under letter No.30/1/2002/0300/0300/FD dated 10-04-2002 has expired its utilisation on 14th 
February, 2016. The company has commenced the repayment  and has paid Rs.1,22,30,650/-  utilised till 2001-02.

NOTES : 4  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 12,704,520  33,493,852 
Add: Current Year  6,235,947 (20,789,332)

 18,940,467  12,704,520 

Total  18,940,467  12,704,520 
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NOTES : 5  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 

31/03/2017
 As At 

31/03/2016

Loan Repayable on Demand - Secured
 - From Bank
State Bank of India - Cash Credit A/c
Axis Bank Limited  - Cash Credit A/c
State Bank of India - Buyers Credit
Axis Bank Limited  - Buyers Credit
Un Secured Loans From Related Parties
From Directors
S Chandra Sekhar
From Others
Greenpath Energy Pvt Ltd
Loan Repayable on Demand -  Un Secured
State Bank of India - Bill Discounting
Axis Bank Limited  - Bill Discounting
Axis Bank Limited  - PGSI Purchase Card

 

113,749,528 
 115,827,943 
 11,061,724 
 77,531,566 

 

62,255,670 

 74,510,904 

 27,185,187 
 -   

 5,089,125 

 127,703,925 
 145,066,908 

 -   
 41,626,219 

 -   

 -
   

 78,501,311 
 12,310,749 

 5,088,738 

Total  487,211,647  410,297,850 

5.1	 The working capital facilities are secured by hypothecation of the current assets of the company and further secured 
by a first charge on the fixed assets of the company (excluding fixed assets created out of term loan sanctioned 
by Bank of India) , second charge on fixed assets created out of term loan sanctioned by Bank of India and are 
personally guaranteed by Mr.S.Chandra Sekhar  Managing Director,   Smt.S.Lalitha Sree, Director and Smt.S.Ratna 
Kumari.

5.2	 Terms of repayment of Term Loans :	 `

Sl. 
No. Bank "Rate of  

Interest %"
Balance as on 
31.03.2017

"Rate of  
Interest %"

Balance as on 
31.03.2016

Loan Repayable on Demand - Secured
 - From Bank
State Bank of India - Cash Credit A/c 13.80%  113,749,528 12.75%  127,703,925 
Axis Bank Limited  - Cash Credit A/c 11.70%  115,827,943 12.75%  145,066,908 
State Bank of India - Buyers Credit 1.38%  11,061,724  -    -   
Axis Bank Limited  - Buyers Credit 1.15% to 1.92%  77,531,566 1.21% to 1.37%  41,626,219 
Un Secured Loans From Related Parties
From Directors
S Chandra Sekhar 10.00%  62,255,670  -    -   
From Others
Greenpath Energy Pvt Ltd 10.00%  74,510,904  -    -   
Loan Repayable on Demand -   
Un Secured
State Bank of India - Bill Discounting 7.90%  27,185,187 8.00%  78,501,311 
Axis Bank Limited  - Bill Discounting  -    -   10.15%  12,310,749 
Axis Bank Limited  - PGSI Purchase Card 18.60%  5,089,125 18.60%  5,088,738 

NOTES : 6  TRADE PAYABLES	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016

Trade Payables - Raw Materials  682,852,865  525,601,567 

Trade Payables - Consumables, Stores & Spares  13,132,891  8,874,032 

Trade Payables - Others  85,833,598  75,463,199 

Total  781,819,354  609,938,798 
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6.1	 Sundry creditors as at 31st March 2017 includes an amount of Rs. 7.61 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 52.12 lakhs) 
outstanding  (but not over due) to micro and small enterprises. The above disclosure is based on the information 
available with the company regarding the status of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act 2006.	

NOTES : 7   OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES	 `

Sl. 
No.

Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016

Current Maturities on Long Term Debts

Bank of India - Term Loan  40,000,000  35,000,000 

Deferred Sales Tax Liability  10,149,421  8,296,558 

Unpaid dividiends  232,112  353,702 

Other Liabilities - Statutory Payments  3,452,239  2,299,483 

Other Liabilities - Capital Goods  62,283,783  34,021,148 

Advance from Customers  39,025,000  49,687,500 

Total  155,142,555  129,658,391 

7.1	 Government of Andhra Pradesh vide letter No.20/2/6/1369/ID dated 08-10-1996 and letter No.30/1/2002/0300/0300/
FD dated 10-04-2002 had sanctioned sales tax deferment for an amount of Rs.9,18,54,000/- and Rs. 5,14,50,510/- 
respectively for a period of 14 years to the company in respect of chlorpyriphos plant. The sanction of Rs.9,18,54,000/- 
under letter No.20/2/6/1369/ID dated 08-10-1996 has expired its utilization on 28th February, 2010 and sanction 
of Rs.5,14,50,510/- under letter No.30/1/2002/0300/0300/FD dated 10-04-2002 has expired its utilisation on 14th 
February, 2016. The company has commenced the repayment and has to pay Rs.1,01,49,421/- (previous year 
Rs.82,96,558/-) during the year 2017-18.

7.2	 Balance in Unpaid Dividends is not due to be credited to investor education & protection fund.

NOTES : 8  SHORT TERM PROVISIONS	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016

Provision - Others
Provision for expenses  430,548  62,162 

Total  430,548  62,162 



Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited

46

N
ot

es
 o

n 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

St
at

em
en

ts
 f

or
 t
he

 p
er

io
d 

en
de

d 
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

7
N

O
TE

S 
9 

FI
X

ED
 A

SS
ET

S 
:		

`

Sl
. 

N
o

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
ro

ss
 B

lo
ck

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n/
A

m
or

tis
at

io
n

N
et

 B
lo

ck
A

s 
A

t 
01

.0
4.

20
16

A
dd

iti
on

s
D

ed
uc

tio
ns

/
D

el
et

io
ns

A
s 

A
t

31
.0

3.
20

17
A

s 
A

t
01

.0
4.

20
16

D
ed

uc
tio

ns
/

D
el

et
io

ns
Pe

rio
d 

En
de

d
31

.0
3.

20
17

U
p 

To
31

.0
3.

20
17

A
s 

A
t 

31
.0

3.
20

17
A

s 
A

t 
31

.0
3.

20
16

A
TA

N
G

IB
LE

 A
SS

ET
S

1
La

nd
 &

 S
ite

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
 7

,6
01

,3
17

 
 - 

 - 
 7

,6
01

,3
17

 
 - 

 - 
 -

 
 -

 
 7

,6
01

,3
17

 
 7

,6
01

,3
17

 

2
Fa

ct
or

y 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 1

55
,5

77
,3

75
 

 2
,9

84
,0

06
 

 - 
 1

58
,5

61
,3

81
 

 3
4,

58
0,

37
3 

 - 
 4

,5
43

,1
20

 
 3

9,
12

3,
49

3 
 1

19
,4

37
,8

88
 

 1
20

,9
97

,0
03

 

3
Pl

an
t &

 E
qu

ip
m

en
ts

 7
66

,6
66

,8
50

 
 5

3,
33

0,
00

3 
 - 

 8
19

,9
96

,8
53

 
 2

81
,9

44
,2

20
 

 - 
 2

5,
22

2,
63

4 
 3

07
,1

66
,8

54
 

 5
12

,8
29

,9
99

  
48

4,
72

2,
62

9 

4
El

ec
tri

ca
l I

ns
ta

lla
tio

ns
 9

2,
69

5,
23

8 
 5

,4
99

,3
38

 
 - 

 9
8,

19
4,

57
6 

 4
6,

15
4,

71
7 

 - 
 7

,5
38

,5
48

 
 5

3,
69

3,
26

5 
 4

4,
50

1,
31

1 
 4

6,
54

0,
52

1 

5
Fu

rn
itu

re
 &

 F
ix

tu
re

s
 2

,4
25

,4
53

 
 4

4,
90

0 
 - 

 2
,4

70
,3

53
 

 2
,2

39
,8

97
 

 - 
 3

8,
14

4 
 2

,2
78

,0
41

 
 1

92
,3

12
 

 1
85

,5
56

 

6
O

ffi
ce

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

 3
,7

16
,6

35
 

 4
7,

00
0 

 - 
 3

,7
63

,6
35

 
 2

,8
97

,2
43

 
 - 

 2
53

,9
13

 
 3

,1
51

,1
56

 
 6

12
,4

79
 

 8
19

,3
92

 

7
Co

m
pu

te
rs

 2
,6

53
,6

82
 

 2
85

,7
00

 
 - 

 2
,9

39
,3

82
 

 1
,8

12
,6

11
 

 - 
 4

00
,9

53
 

 2
,2

13
,5

64
 

 7
25

,8
18

 
 8

41
,0

71
 

8
Ve

hi
cl

es
 6

,3
16

,2
49

 
 - 

 - 
 6

,3
16

,2
49

 
 4

,6
56

,7
79

 
 - 

 3
52

,9
08

 
 5

,0
09

,6
87

 
 1

,3
06

,5
62

 
 1

,6
59

,4
70

 

SU
B 

TO
TA

L
 1

,0
37

,6
52

,7
99

 
 6

2,
19

0,
94

7 
 - 

1,
09

9,
84

3,
74

6 
 3

74
,2

85
,8

40
 

 - 
 3

8,
35

0,
22

0 
 4

12
,6

36
,0

60
 

 6
87

,2
07

,6
86

  
66

3,
36

6,
95

9 

B
IN

TA
N

G
IB

LE
 A

SS
ET

S

1
So

ftw
ar

e
 3

6,
26

5 
 1

42
,4

50
 

 - 
 1

78
,7

15
 

 3
6,

26
5 

 - 
 9

,5
43

 
 4

5,
80

8 
 1

32
,9

07
 

 - 

2
Te

ch
ni

ca
l K

no
w

ho
w

 4
,0

70
,0

00
 

 - 
 - 

 4
,0

70
,0

00
 

 4
,0

70
,0

00
 

 - 
 -

 
 4

,0
70

,0
00

 
 - 

 - 

SU
B 

TO
TA

L
 4

,1
06

,2
65

 
 1

42
,4

50
 

 - 
 4

,2
48

,7
15

 
 4

,1
06

,2
65

 
 - 

 9
,5

43
 

 4
,1

15
,8

08
 

 1
32

,9
07

 
 - 

PR
EV

IO
U

S 
YE

AR
 8

63
,7

04
,6

50
  1

92
,2

68
,6

11
 

 1
4,

21
4,

19
7 

1,
04

1,
75

9,
06

4 
 3

42
,4

96
,2

18
 

 4
42

,3
03

  
36

,3
38

,1
90

  
37

8,
39

2,
10

5 
 6

63
,3

66
,9

59
 

 5
21

,2
08

,4
31

 

C
C

ap
ita

l W
or

k 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s

   
   

 - 
Ci

vi
l

 - 
 2

,9
84

,0
06

 
 2

,9
84

,0
06

 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 -
 

 -
 

 - 
 - 

   
   

 - 
Pl

an
t &

 E
qu

ip
m

en
ts

 - 
 5

8,
82

9,
34

1 
 5

8,
82

9,
34

1 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 -
 

 -
 

 - 
 - 

SU
B 

TO
TA

L
 - 

 6
1,

81
3,

34
7 

 6
1,

81
3,

34
7 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 -

 
 -

 
 - 

 - 

G
RA

N
D

 T
O

TA
L

 1
,0

41
,7

59
,0

64
  

12
4,

14
6,

74
4 

 6
1,

81
3,

34
7 

1,
10

4,
09

2,
46

1 
 3

78
,3

92
,1

05
 

 - 
 3

8,
35

9,
76

3 
 4

16
,7

51
,8

68
 

 6
87

,3
40

,5
93

  
66

3,
36

6,
95

9 



Annual Report 2016-2017

47

NOTES : 10  LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017 As At 31/03/2016

Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits  18,851,225  18,175,593 

MAT Credit Entitlement  25,011,819  25,011,819 

Total  43,863,044  43,187,412 

10.1	 Balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation if any, however in the opinion of the management there 
would not be any material impact on the financial statements.

NOTES : 11  INVENTORIES	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017 As At 31/03/2016

Raw Materials  442,402,768  175,945,602 

Raw Materials in ware house  3,124,429  5,594,500 

Stock-in-Process  104,536,884  96,683,200 

Finished Goods  496,162,550  417,346,300 

Packing Materials  1,147,658  1,712,067 

Coal & Fuel  6,188,541  16,685,354 

Stores & Spares  8,018,080  7,070,638 

Total  1,061,580,910  721,037,661 

11.1	 Mode of Valuation of Inventories - Cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.

NOTES : 12 TRADE RECEIVABLES	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017 As At 31/03/2016

Un Secured and Considered Good :
Outstanding for a period more than six months from the date 

they were due for payment

 621,713  6,504,237 

Other Receivables  170,636,025  271,801,899 
Total  171,257,738  278,306,136 

12.1	 Balances in Receivables  are subject to confirmation and reconciliation if any, however in the opinion of the 
management there would not be any material impact on the financial statements.

NOTES : 13  CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017 As At 31/03/2016

Cash-on-Hand  887,740  2,132,493 

(Cash is certified by the management)

Balances with banks

in current account  1,226,737  492,663 

in EEFC account  9,994  14,513 

Margin money - Bank deposits  11,698,180  11,390,652 

Earmarked accounts - unclaimed dividend  232,112  353,702 

Total  14,054,763  14,384,023 
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13.1	 Balances with banks includes deposits amouting to Rs.Nil ( Previous Year Rs35 lakhs. ) which have originally 
maturity of more than 12 months

NOTES : 14  SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES	 `

Sl. 
No. Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016 

Unsecured considered Good
Balances with Government Authorities

Cenvat Credit Receivable  27,874,778  20,375,860 
VAT Credit Receivable  70,873  -   
Export Incentive Receivable  348,934  8,142,371 
Excise Duty Rebate Receivable  28,679,639  26,967,204 

Advance to Suppliers  6,731,852  9,772,124 
Prepaid Expenses  1,267,487  1,563,887 
Income Tax Receivable  776,879  1,173,951 
Other Advances  2,145,163  2,670,263 
Total  67,895,605  70,665,660 

14.1	 Balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation if any, however in the opinion of the management there 
would not be any material impact on the financial statements.

NOTES : 15  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS	 `

Sl. 

No.
Particulars  As At 31/03/2017  As At 31/03/2016 

Accrued Interest  1,569,131  1,204,730 

Total  1,569,131  1,204,730 

NOTES : 16  SALES REVENUE	 `
Sl. 
No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  
31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

SALE OF PRODUCTS
Domestic Sales
Export Sales

 891,239,795 
1,290,590,655 

 673,271,426 
 956,848,440 

2,181,830,450  1,630,119,866 
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
 - Export Incentives
 - Job Work Charges

 27,629,135 
 1,080,000 

 
28,709,135 

 11,421,811 
 - 

 
11,421,811 

 2,210,539,585  1,641,541,677 
Less :	 Excise Duty
	 Sales Tax

 159,931,289 
 19,649,953 

 126,534,537 
 12,312,914 

 179,581,242  138,847,451 

Total  2,030,958,343  1,502,694,226 

NOTES : 17 OTHER INCOME	 `
Sl. 
No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  
31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Interest Income
Misc Income
Duty Draw Back Receivable
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets
Net Gain on Foreign Currency transactions 
and translations 

 2,099,844 
 167,044 
 525,424 

 - 

15,484,400 

 1,659,008 
 524,377 
 221,445 

 7,986,956 
 
-

Total  18,276,712  10,391,786 
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NOTES : 18 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED	 `

Sl. 

No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  

31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  

31.03.2016 
RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock

Add: Purchases

 175,945,602  

1,732,381,538 

 274,857,606 

1,123,338,620 
Less: Closing Stock 1,908,327,140 

 445,527,197 

1,398,196,226 

 181,540,102 
 1,462,799,943  1,216,656,124 

PACKING MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock

Add: Purchases

 

1,712,067 

 23,344,865 

 826,454 

 23,320,560 

Less: Closing Stock

 25,056,932 

 1,147,658 

 24,147,014 

 1,712,067 
 23,909,274  22,434,947 

Total  1,486,709,217  1,239,091,071 

NOTES : 19 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK IN PROCESS	 `

Sl. 

No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  

31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  

31.03.2016 
Opening Stock

Stock-in- process

Finished goods

 96,683,200 

417,346,300 

 88,711,691 

 215,117,913 
 514,029,500  303,829,604 

Closing Stock

Stock-in- process

Finished goods

104,536,884  

496,162,550 

 96,683,200 

 417,346,300 
 600,699,434  514,029,500 

Variance in Stocks  (86,669,934)  (210,199,896)

NOTES : 20 EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES	 `

Sl. 

No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  

31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  

31.03.2016 
Salaries,Wages & Bonus

Directors Remuneration

Contribution to PF,ESI & Gratuity

Staff Welfare Expenses

 91,941,918 

 3,600,000 

 13,356,665 

 8,389,089 

 79,458,067 

 3,600,000 

 8,962,300 

 6,792,918 

Total  117,287,672  98,813,285 



Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited

50

NOTES : 21   FINANCE COSTS	 `

Sl. 

No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  

31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  

31.03.2016 
Interest on Working Capital

Interest on Term Loan

Interest to Others

Bank Charges

 32,206,881 

 21,137,400 

 2,081,438 

 6,524,204 

 39,124,939 

 21,367,960 

 478,551 

 5,089,563 

Total  61,949,923  66,061,013 

NOTES : 22  OTHER EXPENSES	 `

Sl. 
No.

Particulars  For The Year Ended  
31.03.2017 

 For The Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Power & Fuel

Stores , Spares & Consumables

Repairs & Maintenance

   - Buildings

   - Plant and Machinery

   - Others

Insurance

Effluent Treatment Charges

Other Manufacturing Expenses

 

213,799,623 

 28,985,760 

 

4,005,759 

 8,123,902 

 1,912,646 

 2,794,500 

 54,165,885 

 13,375,369 

 

187,066,732 

 25,209,840 

 

2,299,624 

 10,914,970 

 1,185,292 

 2,327,794 

 34,096,675 

 6,757,020 

Total  327,163,444  269,857,947 
ADMINISTRATION, SELLING AND 

OTHER EXPENSES

R & D Expenses

Rent

Rates & Taxes

Travelling & Conveyance 

Statutory Auditors Remuneration

Cost Auditors Remunration

Vehicle Maintenance

Postage & Telegrams

Printing & Stationery

Telephone Charges

Legal & professional Charges

Selling & Other Expenses

Other Expenses

 8,901,641 

 1,692,920 

 944,322 

 3,517,546 

 932,500 

 75,000 

 3,019,343 

 353,114 

 666,477 

 824,580 

 4,161,369 

 37,943,590 

 14,897,811 

 11,202,685 

 1,685,040 

 486,765 

 1,771,911 

 960,000 

 75,000 

 2,480,372 

 267,092 

 594,563 

 879,333 

 7,014,239 

 30,358,034 

 8,222,291 
Total  77,930,213  65,997,325 

Total  405,093,657  335,855,272 
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NOTE – 23

Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts Forming part of Financial Statements

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2017 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the 
year ended on that date:

NOTE ON OPERATIONS:

Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited was incorporated on 07th July, 1993 in Hyderabad,  has got the manufacturing 
facility at Ongole District, Andhra Pradesh and is engaged in manufacturing of Pesticides.

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 a)	 Basis of Accounting

		  The company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes income and expenditure on accrual 
basis unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and 
comply with applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 b)	 Revenue Recognition

		  i)	 Revenues from the sale of goods are recognized upon passage of title to the customers which generally 
coincides with  their delivery.

		  ii)	 Export incentives are recognized when the right to receive credit as per the terms of incentives is established 
in respect of the exports made.

	 c)	 Use of Estimates

		  The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported 
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the results are known / materialized.

	 d)	 Fixed Assets 

		  Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition including any attributable cost for bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use less MODVAT/CENVAT Credit availed and accumulated depreciation.

	 e)	 Impairment of Assets

		  Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. The impairment 
loss which is the excess of carrying amount over the higher of the assets net selling price or present value of 
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and its eventual disposal is charged to 
the Profit & Loss Account in the respective years.

	 f)	 Depreciation

		  Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on straight line method  on the basis of useful life’s  as prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 on pro rata basis.

		  In respect of Intangible assets depreciation is calculated for  Technical knowhow  @ 5.28% and Computer 
Software @ 33.33%.

	 g)	 Inventories

		  Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is computed on weighted average method. 
Cost includes purchase cost net of CENVAT credit availed and attributable expenses.

		  Finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Goods in transit are valued at cost 
which represents the cost incurred upto the stage at which the goods are in transit.

	 h)	 Foreign Currency Transactions

		  Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

		  Gains and losses resulting from realizations on account of exports  and imports in foreign currency remaining 
unrealized/ unpaid/unsettled at the year-end are recognized in the Profit & Loss Account.

		  Difference between the forward exchange contract rate and the exchange rate as at the reporting date, date of 
settlement/cancellation and renewal are recognized as income/expense and are accounted for in the Profit & 
Loss Account.

2017
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	 i)	 Employee Benefits

		  i)	 Short term employee benefits

			   Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term 
employee benefits and are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

		  ii)     Post employment benefits (defined benefit plans)

			   The employee gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such 
defined benefit plan is determined at each Balance Sheet date based on an actuarial valuation carried 
out by LIC using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are 
recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

		  iii)   Post employment benefits (defined contribution plans)

			   Contributions to the provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme, are recognized as an expense 
in the profit and loss account in the period in which the contribution is due.

			   The estimates of future salary increases, considered in acturial valuations take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factor in the employment market.

			   Investment details of the plan assets

			   In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which are funded with life Insurance corporation 
of India, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount of each category 
to the fair value of plan assets is not disclosed.

		  iv)   Long term employee benefits

			   Long term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences. These are measured based on an actuarial 
valuation carried out by LIC using the projected unit method at each Balance Sheet date unless they are 
insignificant. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are recognized immediately in the Profit 
and Loss account.

			   As per Standing orders approved by Joint Commissioner of Labour, Guntur employee is entitled Paid leaves 
for 15 days for a year and unutilized balance is restricted to 120 days.  The value of such leave balance 
eligible for carry forward, is determined by actuarial valuation and charged to revenue in the period 
determined. The scheme is fully funded by way of subscription to the “Leave Encashment Scheme” of Life 
Insurance Corporation of India. 

	 j)	 Research and Development

		  Research and Development costs (other than cost of fixed assets acquired) are charged as an expense in the year 
in which they are incurred and are reflected under the appropriate head of account.

	 k)	 Borrowing Costs

		  Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the 
cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for 
intended use. Interest on funds utilized is recognized as revenue expense in the year in which they are incurred. 
All other borrowing costs are charged to the revenue account based on their use.

	 l)	 Taxation

		  Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax is accounted for the timing differences 
between the book and tax profits for the year using the current tax rates.

		  A provision is made for the current tax based on tax liability computed in accordance with relevant tax rates 
and tax laws.

	 m)	 Provisions & Contingencies

		  Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which the reliable estimate can be 
made. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	 n)	 Earnings per Share (EPS)

		  The earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS comprises of the net profit after tax. The number of shares used 
in computing EPS is total number of fully paid shares comprised in the paid up share capital of the company.

	 o)	 Cash Flow Statement

		  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit or (loss) before extraordinary items and tax 
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated based on the available information.
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II NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
 1. Contingent Liabilities ` in lakhs

Particulars
As at

31.03.2017
As at

31.03.2016
Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
       -  Letters of Credit
       -  Bank Guarantees                                                                                              

351.73
5.00

288.55
12.00

 2. In the opinion of the Management and to the best of their knowledge and belief the value of the realization of 
Current Assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount of 
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.  The provision for depreciation and for all the known liabilities is 
adequate and not in excess of what is required.

 3. Segment Reporting

  There are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard 17, as the entire operations of the company 
relate to one segment, viz. Agrochemicals.

 4. Related Party Transactions

  Disclosure in respect of related parties as defined in Accounting Standard 18 with whom transactions have taken 
place during the year are given below:

  a) List of Related Parties:
   (i) Key Management Personnel
    Sri S. Chandra Sekhar, Managing  Director
   (ii) Related Party: 
    - Nagarjuna Agrichem Limited
    - Greenpath Energy Pvt Ltd

  b) Transactions with related parties: ` in lakhs

Particulars
2016-17

(`)
2015-16

(`)
i) Sale of Finished Goods
 Nagarjuna Agrichem Limited
ii) Purchase  of Raw Materials  :
 Nagarjuna Agrichem Limited
iii) Managerial Remuneration
 Managing Director
iv) Loans Taken
 S.Chandra Sekhar – Managing Director
 Greenpath Energy Pvt Ltd
v) Loans Repaid
 S.Chandra Sekhar – Managing Director
vi) Interest provided
 S.Chandra Sekhar – Managing Director
 Greenpath Energy Pvt Ltd

39,864,009

3,132,740

3,859,200

76,600,000
74,000,000

15,000,000

728,522
567,671

     
112,108,300

-

3,859,200 

-
-

-

-
-

Outstanding Balances 
2016-17

(`)
2015-16

(`)
Sundry Debtors 
i) Nagarjuna Agrichem Limited
Un Secured Loans
i) S.Chandra Sekhar – Managing Director
 Greenpath Energy Pvt Ltd
ii) Trade Payable
 Nagarjuna Agrichem Ltd
Salary payable :
i) S.Chandra Sekhar – Managing Director

9,588,797

62,255,670
74,510,904

1,232,740

244,176

22,402,953

-
-

-

244,176
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5.	 Employee Benifits

a.	 Defined Benifit Plans
The Following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity plan and Leave Enchasement of the company and the amounts 
recognised in the balance sheet and statement of profit & loss.
Actuarial valuation of Gratuity & Leave Encashment	 `

Particulars
Gratuity Leave Encashment

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Projected Benefit Obligation at the beginning 
of the year 16,816,155  16,412,532  7,079,092  5,629,067 

Current Service Cost  871,553  1,846,090  757,916  324,008 

Interest cost  1,345,292  1,313,003  566,327  450,325 

Actuarial Gain/Loss  1,400,899  -1,609,702  1,219,099  1,256,503 

Less.Benefits Paid  347,595  1,145,768  -  580,811 

Additional Charges*  -  -  -  - 

Past Service Cost  -  -  -  - 

Projected Benefit Obligation at  
the end of the year

 20,086,304  16,816,155  9,622,434  7,079,092 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the 
year

 17,878,225  16,606,501  10,966,785  10,368,709 

Expected return on plan assets  1,464,419  1,409,989  -  865,180 

Actuarial Gain/loss  -  -  -  - 

Employer Contributions  72,819  1,007,503  -  313,707 

Less. Benefits Paid  347,595  1,145,768  -  580,811 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  19,067,868  17,878,225  10,966,785  10,966,785 

Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  20,086,304  16,816,155  9,622,434  7,079,092 

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year  19,067,868  17,878,225  10,966,785  10,966,785 

Asset/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet  -1,018,436  1,062,070  1,344,351  3,887,693 

Cost of retirement and other benefits for the 
year

Current Service Cost  871,553  1,846,090  757,916  324,008 

Interest cost  1,345,292  1,313,003  566,327  450,325 

Expected return on plan assets  1,464,419  1,409,989  -  865,180 

Net actuarial (Gain/loss recognised in the year)  1,400,899  -1,609,702  1,219,099  1,256,503 

past service cost  -  - 

Net Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and loss

 2,153,325  139,402  2,543,342  1,165,656 

Acturial Assumptions

Discount Rate (%) 8% 8% 8% 8%

The estimatets of future salary increases, considered in acturial valuations take account of inflation, 
seniority,promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factor in the employment market.

Investment details of the plan assets

In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which are funded with life Insurance corporation of 
India, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount of each category to the fair 
value of plan assets is not disclosed.
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	 6.	 Earnings Per Share

		  Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity share holders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The basic and diluted EPS per equity share is 
given hereunder:

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Profit/(Loss) After Tax
Weighted average no. of shares
Basic and diluted earnings per share of Rs. 10/- each

2,03,14,338
5,053,700

4.02

-32,083,592
5,053,700

-6.35

7.	 The company has provided deferred tax liability of Rs.6,285,539/- for the current year (Previous year net 
deferred tax Asset of Rs.20,789,332/-)  as per the Accounting Standard 22  Breakup of deferred tax liabilities 
and reconciliation of current year deferred tax charge / income  are given below:

`

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 Current Year
2016-2017 As at 31.3.2017

Deferred    tax    assets  / (liabilities) arising on 
account of timing difference
Depreciation
R & D Equipment
Unabsorbed Depreciation
Unabsorbed Business Loss

-57,730,610
-2,766,153
38,792,837

8,999,405

-11,233,269
217,180

4,780,142
-

-68,963,879
2,548,973

43,572,980
8,999,405

Total -12,704,520 -6,235,947 -18,940,467

8.	 A	 Particulars of remuneration to Statutory Auditors

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Audit Fees
Tax Audit
Fees for certification Charges
Out of pocket expenses

600,000
50,000
57,500
25,000

600,000
50,000
85,000
25,000

Total 732,500 760,000

8.	 B	 Particulars of remuneration to Cost Auditors

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Audit Fees
Fees for Certification Charges
Out of pocket expenses

75,000
-

1,500

75,000
1,000
1,500

Total 76,500 77,500

9.	 Particulars of Expenditure on Research & Development

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Capital
Recurring :

- Laboratory Exp and  consumables
- Employee benefit expenses
- Repairs & maintenance
- Other Expenses

-

5,630,390
3,118,682
    27,555
  125,014

-

8,167,476
2,761,519
     83,150
   190,540

Total 8,901,641 11,202,685
R & D Expenditure as % of Turnover 0.44 0.75



Bhagiradha Chemicals & Industries Limited

56

10.	 The year end  foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged are given below:         

Particulars
Year ended 31.03.2017 Year Ended 31.03.2016

Currency FC Amount Rupee
Equivalent Currency FC Amount Rupee

Equivalent
Purchase of Goods
Sale of Goods
EEFC Balance
Advance from Customers
Advance to Suppliers

USD
USD
USD
USD
GBP

7,313,726
1,183,000

154
500,000

5,406

474,295,148
7,67,17,550

9,994
3,24,25,000

4,37,359

USD
USD
USD
USD

-

4,308,640
2,889,806

219
750,000

-

285,447,418
191,449,640

14,492
49,687,500

-

11.	 Value of raw materials Consumed

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Value
`

% to total 
consumption

Value
`

% to total 
consumption

Imported
Indigenous

689,117,730
773,682,213

47.11
52.89

440,898,658
775,757,466

36.24
63.76

Total 1,462,799,943 100.00 1,216,656,124 100.00

12.	 Value of imports on CIF  Basis 

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Raw Materials
Plant & Machinery

885,793,710
-

378,803,005
30,50,807

Total 885,793,710 381,853,812

13.	 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

Sales Commission
Interest
Travelling Expenses
R&D Imports

459,294
778,473
598,025
15,037

507,687
139,752

81,866
139,752

Total 18,50,829 8,69,057

14.	 Earnings in Foreign Currency

Particulars 2016-17
(`)

2015-16
(`)

FOB value of exports 1,164,546,887 867,984,404
Total 1,164,546,887 867,984,404

15.	 Notes on Demonetization :	 `

Particulars SBNs Other denomination 
notes Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016
(+) Permitted receipts
(-) Permitted payments
(-) Amount deposited in Banks

131,000
-
-

131,000

    322,874
1,016,000
   170,803

-

   453,874
1,016,000
    470,803
   131,000

Closing Cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 868,071 868,071
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16.	 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever considered necessary to confirm to the 
current year presentation or classification.

As per our attached report of even date 	 For and on behalf of the Board
For R. Kankaria & Uttam Singhi
Chartered Accountants	
Firm Regn No.000442S	

	 D. Ranga Raju	 S. Chandra Sekhar
Uttam Kumar Singhi 	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Partner	 DIN: 00066546	 DIN: 00159543
Membership No.027481	

Place: Hyderabad	 B.Murali	 B.N.Suvarchala
Date : 22.05.2017	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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Name of the Member(s) :........................................................................................................................................................

Registered address: :...............................................................................................................................................................

E-mail :......................................................................Folio no./ Client Id / DP Id : :...................................................................

No of shares : :...............................................................................................

I / We, being the member(s) of the above named company, hereby appoint:

Name: .................................................................................................................................................................................... 

E-mail : ………………………....................................................................................................................................................

Address : :..............................................................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................Signature: ..........................................................................

or failing him / her

Name: ........................................................................................................................................................................................
E-mail : ……………………….....................................................................................................................................................
Address : ....................................................................................................................................................................................
Signature: ..........................................................................

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting  
of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 26th September, 2017 at 11.00 AM at Hotel Green Park, Greenlands, Ameerpet,  
Hyderabad - 500 016 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below.
 

SI.
No. Resolution(s)

Vote
For Against Abstain

Ordinary Business
1 Adoption of Audited financial statements for the FY : 2016-17
2 Re-appointment of Smt. S. Lalitha Sree as a Director
3 Appointment of M/s. S. Singhvi & Co, as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

Special Business: 
4 Ordinary Resolution: Ratification of Cost Auditors Remuneration for the 

FY: 2017-18
5 Special Resolution: Adoption of MOA as per Companies Act, 2013
6 Special Resolution: To Approve the Increase in borrowing limits and 

converion of the same into equity capital.

Signed this ......... day of ............................. 2017.

........................................ ............................................................ 
Signature of the proxy holder(s)

Note: The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly 
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Place:
Date:	 Signature of the Shareholder

Affix
`1.00

Revenue
Stamp
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BHAGIRADHA CHEMICALS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L24219AP1993PLC015963

Plot No. 3, Sagar Society, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad -500034;
Ph No: 040 4222 1212; Email: info@bhagirad.com;

ATTENDANCE SLIP

To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall

24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER

Folio No. / Client ID / DP ID : 

No.of Shares: 

Name of the attending member/ : 

Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS) 

I hereby record my presence at the TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company being held at 11.00 

AM on Tuesday, the 26th September, 2017 at Green Park Hotel, Greenlands, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 016. 

...........................................................

Member’s / Proxy’s Signature
(To be signed at the time of handing over the Slip) 

$

$
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Notes



Notes


